
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA       
September 10, 2018 - 7:00 P.M.  

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 
I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. RECOGNITION OF EMPLOYEES:

1. Dillion McDaniel, NCAMES Rodeo.
2. Ron Mills, NCAMES Rodeo.
3. Chris Turnage, NCAMES Rodeo.
4. Randall Rouse, NCAMES Rodeo.

VII. PRESENTATIONS:

1. Dr. Lawrence Rouse, President of Pitt Community College. Susan Nobles, Vice President
Institutional Advancement will be introducing Dr. Rouse.

2. 2017 Street Improvements Construction Progress Update - Bryan Fagundus, Ark Consultant.
3. How are We Doing? Update on Town Projects and Associated Funding – Ben Williams,

Assistant Town Manager.

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on any other
matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing section of the
agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public comment on the
item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting, except during the Public
Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are limited to a maximum of three
minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the Council on a single matter. The Town
Council may elect to take no action on the matter addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for
further consideration at a future Council meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition.
Copies of the Town Public Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

IX. CONSENT AGENDA:  The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be discussed
by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be removed from the
Consent Agenda for further discussion.  The Mayor may allow citizens to address an item or ask
questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:

 May 30, 2018 Budget Workshop #1 – FY 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Budget.
 May 31, 2018 Budget Workshop #2 – FY 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Budget.
 June 4, 2018 Budget Public Hearing - FY 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Budget.



2. Appointment of Voting Delegate and Alternate Voting Delegate for the Annual NCLM
Conference, Hickory, NC.

3. Charge Tax Collector to Collect 2018-2019 Taxes.
4. Settlement of 2017-2018 Taxes.
5. Mellon Downs – Lots 19, 21, 25, 40, 41, 45, 47, 49, 50, 52, 57, 73, 74, 75, 83 and 85 – Set

Public Hearing for Annexation for October 8, 2018.
6. Aces for Autism Property (Parcel #14643) Rezoning - Set Public Hearing for Annexation for

October 8, 2018.

X. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Purchase of Altec Industries 60 foot Bucket Truck through Sourcewell Purchasing Cooperative.
2. Purchase of John Deere 410L Backhoe Loader through Sourcewell Purchasing Cooperative.
3. Award of Contract for Hillcrest Park Basketball Court Resurfacing.

XI. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Selection of Consultant for Horizon Land Use Plan – Stewart.
2. Discussion and Approval of Contract between Pitt County Schools and the Town of Winterville

for one (1) School Resource Officer (Town officer) who will primarily be based at AG Cox Middle
School, with secondary duties at both WH Robinson and Creekside Elementary Schools.

3. Budget Amendment.
4. 2018 Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony Date.

XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS.

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS.

XIV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS:

Update on Projects Currently Underway: Regional Sewer Pump Station Project 
Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage 

Basin Study 
2018 SRF Application (Sewer Rehabilitation) 
NTE Plant Construction Project 
Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement 
Horizon Land Use Plan 
Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan 
Winterville Market/Town Common Plan 
Resurfacing of the Hillcrest Basketball Courts 

(See above in Old Business.) 
Fork Swamp Greenway Project 

XV. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVI. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Special Called Meeting – September 17, 2018 – 5:30 pm – Town Hall Executive Conference
Room.

2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting – September 17, 2018 – 7 pm – Town Hall Assembly
Room.

2



3. Board of Adjustment Meeting – September 18, 2018 – 7 pm – Town Hall Assembly Room.
4. Community Day – September 15, 2018 – 1 pm – 6 pm - Winterville Recreation Park.
5. Operation Beautification – September 15, 2018, 9 am – Winterville Train Depot.
6. 2018 NCLM Conference – September 19 – 21, 2018, Hickory, NC.

XVIII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the meeting should 
notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. (Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

3



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Draft Minutes. 

Attachment: DRAFT Minutes. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 8/27/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC  FD  TM  9/6/2018  Final  9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 

• May 30, 2018 Budget Work Session Meeting Minutes

• May 31, 2018 Budget Work Session Meeting Minutes

• June 4, 2018 Budget Public Hearing Meeting Minutes

Budgetary Impact:  N/A. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

4



Winterville Town Council 
May 30, 2018 

Budget Work Session Meeting Minutes 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Budget Work Session Meeting on the above date at 6:00 PM in 
the Winterville Train Depot, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 
Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Amy P. Barrow, Executive Staff/Human Resource Assistant 

Donald A. Harvey, Town Clerk 

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 

INVOCATION: Councilwoman Roberson gave the Invocation. 

WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed everyone to the work session. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilwoman 
Roberson to approve the agenda. The motion carried unanimously (5-0). 

Manager Parker noted some housekeeping items, Mayor Pro Tem Smith gave the blessing, and the 
group ate dinner. 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Recommended Budget. Manager Parker began 
with comments summarizing the Budget and Explanation of Current Deficit. Council has received updated 
budget summary information showing a $4.5 million shortfall between requests and revenues available. 
Departments have been ask to make cuts. The bulk of requests encompass new positions and large 
capital purchases. 

Assistant Manager Williams gave the following presentation on potential changes to revenues relating to 
storm water: 

5



6



7



8



9



10



 
 

 
 

11



 
 

 
 

12



 
 

 
 

13



 
 

 
 

14



 
 

 
 

15



 
Discussion during and after the presentation included topics on the audit of the storm water fee to 
customers and the billing corrections last summer resulting in an increase of $50,000-$70,000. Manager 
Parker noted that the audit helped properly track impervious surface changes. In addition, there was on 
the comparison to other localities. 
 
The discussion also occurred on tax base versus user fees. The enterprise funds includes a salary 
apportionment to each fund for certain employees. Salary apportionment requires cross training of 
employees on different job activities. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve an 
increase of the residential and commercial storm water utility rate of $2.00 per equivalent 
residential unit (ERU). Motion carried 3-2, Councilman Moye and Councilman Moore opposed. 
 
Assistant Manager Williams gave the following presentation on potential changes to revenues relating to 
sewer: 
 

 

16



 
 

17



 
 

18



 
 
  

19



Discussion during and after the presentation-included topics on condition of sewer system and status of 
existing, planned, and potential projects. In addition, much discussion occurred on different ways to pay 
for projects, sources of funds, and impact on the customers. Problems exist to the sewer system, how to 
approach the repairs requires tough decisions; however, we do not want to have a failing system. There 
was also discussion concerning unassigned general fund balance. Staff recommendation is a $5 per 
month increase to the base fixed sewer rate. 
 
Council took a short break. 
 
Manager Parker presented the Draft Budget message shown below: 
  
 

UNBALANCED DRAFT BUDGET VERSION #1 – FY 2018-2019 

 

May 30, 2018 

Mr. Douglas A, Jackson, Mayor 
Mr. Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Mr. Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Mr. Tony Moore, Councilman 
Mr. Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Ms. Veronica Roberson, Councilwoman 
 
RE: Unbalanced Draft Annual Budget (Version #1) for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year 
 
Dear Mayor and Members of the Town Council: 
 
Town Staff is pleased to present the Version #1 of Draft Budget for Fiscal Year 2018-2019, beginning 
July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019. The Draft Budget has been prepared in accordance with the 
NC Local Government Fiscal Control Act as required by NC General Statute Chapter 159-11. 
 
Please further keep in mind this Version #1 of the Draft Budget is unbalanced and includes full 
Departmental Requests as they were submitted to Management. The inclusion of these items is for 
your information only and in no way indicates Management’s support or lack thereof for any particular 
request. The Departments have been instructed to reduce their requests based on the deficit in each 
fund and Version #2 will be available tomorrow before the meeting. They have not been told what to 
reduce or how much – just the amount of deficit between revenues and expenditures in each fund. This 
exercise brings about a Departmental Budget based on the realities of revenues available and not just 
simple addition and subtraction. 
 
The Unbalanced Draft Budget: 
 

 includes no tax adjustments; 

 includes position requests from Inspections, Police, Fire, Public Works, Parks and Recreation – 
discussion item; 

 includes significant capital outlay requests – discussion item; 

 includes level funding for Non-Town Agency requests – discussion item; 

 includes contributions from the Water, Sewer, Storm water and Electric funds to the General 
Fund to compensate for administrative services. 

20



  
The Draft Budget does not include: 
 

 increase in user fees– discussion item. 
 
Below is a brief budgetary summary of point of interests: 

General Fund: 
 
All revenues, which comprise the General Fund, have been forecasted in a conservative manner. Staff 
has reviewed the estimates for state-collected revenues published every year by the North Carolina 
League of Municipalities, current economic trends for Eastern North Carolina, current nationwide 
economic trends and historical data from the Town. The proposed budget assumes a 98% collection 
rate for ad valorem taxes and a slight increase in local option sales tax. The inspections line references 
a full year’s worth of anticipated revenue. 
 
There is no General Fund balance appropriation included, but there is a transfer from the Electric Fund 
to the General Fund in an amount of $311,000 for the time being. 
 
General Fund departments include the Town Council, Administration, Human Resources, 
Inspections/GIS, Finance, Information Technology, Planning, Non-Departmental, Public Buildings, 
Ground and Lawn Maintenance, Police, Fire, EMS, Animal Control, Mosquito Control, Public Works, 
and Sanitation budgets. Expenses have again been forecasted in a conservative manner, but 
approached in such a way that service to the citizens remains constant. 
 
Some highlights (In addition to departmental requests) in the General Fund Departmental budgets 
include: 
 

 Continued funding for the Summer Worker Program. 
 New positions requested as follows: 

 
o Fire Department – 1 FT (Administrative Position); 
o Police Department – 4 FT (Officers); and 
o Inspections – 1 FT (Inspector – 1 part-time has already been added in 17-18). 

 
 Non-Town agency allocations as requested ($112,985). The cash allocation requests for Non-

Town Agency funding are as follows: 
 

o Winterville Watermelon Festival - $50,000; 
o Boys and Girls Club - $5,000; 
o Winterville Chamber of Commerce - $20,000; 
o Pitt County Council on Aging (Meals on Wheels) - $4,485 
o Rebuilding Together, Pitt County, NC - $10,000; 
o Winterville Senior Citizens Club - $5,000; 
o Senior Adult Fellowship - $3,500 and; 
o Pitt County Girls Softball - $15,000. 

 
 The in-kind amounts for Winterville Historical and Arts Society (WHAS) - $11,750. 

 Sheppard Memorial Library has requested a total of $165,300 (no change in funding request for 
FY 2018-2019). 

21



 
Recreation Fund: 
 
Recreation revenues and expenditures have been estimated in a manner similar to the General Fund 
budget. The Parks and Recreation is requesting one (1) new position. 
 
A transfer from General Fund to Recreation in the amount of $822,496 has been included for budgetary 
purposes at this time. 
 
Enterprise Funds Summary: 
 
Electric Fund - There is a transfer from Electric Fund to General Fund in the amount of $311,000 as is 
done annually to assist in covering the costs of operations. 
 
The Electric Fund does not include any request for new positions however, due to the rapid expansion 
of our Town, there is a substantial amount of capital needs requested in order to address territorial 
areas recently approved in agreements with Greenville Utilities Commission (GUC). 
 
Water Fund – no requests for additional personnel have been made in this Fund, however there are 
capital requests. 
 
$457,000 is included for water purchases for resale. This amount covers the water currently purchased 
from Greenville Utilities. As you may recall, the Town is subject to the Capacity Use rules, which require 
cities and towns in the Capacity Use area to reduce their reliance on ground water and find other 
means of water supply. For Winterville, that has entailed purchasing water from Greenville Utilities. The 
Town is required to reduce their reliance on ground water by 75%. The initial 25% reduction has taken 
place, the second reduction took place in August 2013, and the last 25% reduction will take place in 
August 2018. 
 
Sewer Fund – Staff requests a discussion on the potential for a sewer rate increase to address the 
need to cover debt service that will be forthcoming. No requests for additional personnel have been 
made in this Fund however there are capital requests. 
 
As you are aware, the Town is a member of the Contentnea Metropolitan Sewerage District (CMSD) 
and the District performs the treatment function of our sewer system. The Town pays its share based 
on a formula, which contains several components. The Town’s appropriation to CMSD increased to 
$1,023,374 that reflects the continued implementation of the system for charging member entities 
based entirely on flow. 
 
Storm Water Fund – Staff requests a discussion on the potential for a storm water rate increase to 
address the needs of the Fund. There is a request for an additional person for this Fund. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
It is with pleasure caution that Staff presents the Version #1 FY 2018-2019 Unbalanced Draft Budget. 
Staff is pleased with the Town’s progress economically and we hope and plan for that to continue. As 
you know, the cost of doing business continues to rise and as such, it requires us to assess our current 
revenue streams and adjust accordingly, while planning. 
 
Staff looks forward to answering any questions you may have and a Balanced Draft Budget will be 
submitted to you as soon as possible. 

22



 
Thank you. 
 
Terri L. Parker        Anthony Bowers 
Town Manager       Finance Director 
  
 
Discussion during and after the presentation-included topics on the summer work program, new 
personnel requests, capital expenditure requests, fire fee schedule, library budget, sprinkler system in 
fire bays due to code change, police cars. 
 
In addition, discussion occurred on enterprise funds; electric customer service, territory expansion, depth 
of pumps in wells, comprehensive land use plan, and police officers assigned to schools, police off duty 
event pay, and town wide drainage issues. 
 
Council then discussed the Non-Town Agency Funding Requests. After discussions, the following 
motions occurred: 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Hines to grant $5,000 to 
the Boys and Girls Club. Motion carried 4-1, Councilman Moore opposed. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson ask to be excused on the vote for the Winterville Chamber of Commerce due 
to receiving an award from them recently. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to excuse Councilwoman 
Roberson on votes involving the Winterville Chamber of Commerce. Motion carried unanimously 
(4-0). 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye to grant $15,000 to the Winterville Chamber of Commerce and 
to grant $5,000 to the Senior Citizens. Motion died for lack of a second. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moye to grant $15,000 to the 
Winterville Chamber of Commerce. Motion carried 3-1, Councilman Moore opposed. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to grant $4,485 
to the Pitt County Council on Aging (Meals on Wheels). Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye to grant $5,000 to the Rebuilding Together Pitt County, NC. 
Motion died for lack of a second. 
 
Councilwoman Roberson Rebuilding Together Pitt County, NC is a true asset to the Town and go beyond 
the funding. 
 
Motion made by Councilwoman Roberson and seconded by Councilman Hines to grant $10,000 
to the Rebuilding Together, Pitt County, NC. Motion carried 3-2, Councilman Moore and Mayor 
Pro Tem Smith opposed. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye to grant $5,000 to the Winterville Senior Citizens Club. Motion 
died for lack of a second. 
 

23



Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to grant $3,500 to the 
Senior Adult Fellowship and $3,500 to the Winterville Senior Citizens Club. Motion carried 
unanimously (5-0). 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to grant $10,000 to 
the Pitt County Girls Softball. Motion failed 2-3, Councilman Hines, Councilman Moye, and 
Councilwoman Roberson opposed. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to grant $25,000 to the 
Winterville Watermelon Festival for August 2019. Motion carried 3-2, Councilman Hines and Mayor 
Pro Tem Smith opposed. 
 
Manager Parker will revise the table to reflect motions passed and in-kind contributions. Any additional 
direction. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to keep four (4) 
positions and three (3) cars in the budget for the Police Department. Motion carried 3-2, 
Councilman Hines and Councilman Moye opposed. 
 
Motion to adjourn made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines and to 
reconvene on Wednesday, May 31, 2018 at 6:00 pm. Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 
 
 
 

Adopted this the 10th day of September, 2018. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

24



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Winterville Town Council 
May 31, 2018 

Budget Work Session Meeting Minutes 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Budget Work Session Meeting on the above date at 6:00 PM in 
the Winterville Train Depot, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 
Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Amy P. Barrow, Executive Staff/Human Resource Assistant 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moore gave the Invocation and Blessing for the meal. 
 
Manager Parker noted some housekeeping items and the group ate dinner. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Councilman Moore ask to amend the Agenda to include discussion to provide 
additional information on the topic of funds for a group and clarify their funding request. He asked to add 
it at the beginning of the Items for Discussion. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to approve the 
amended agenda. Motion carried 4-1, Councilman Hines opposed. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Recommended Budget. 
 
Discussion of Funding Request: Information presented and discussed relating to Pitt County Girls 
Softball not provided last night. Information included participation by girls from Winterville, impact 

25



benefiting the Town, other government funding to the organization, consideration of merging with Town 
recreation department, demographics of participants, cost to participate, their budget, and charge to use 
their facility. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Smith to grant $10,000 to 
the Pitt County Girls Softball. Motion failed 2-3, Councilman Hines, Councilman Moye, and 
Councilwoman Roberson opposed. 
 
Discussion of Potential Changes to Revenues: 
 
Potential Sewer Rate Increases presented last night: Town Manager Parker reviewed the highlights of 
the presentation. Assistant Manager Williams, when asked last night, recommended a $5 increase for 
the sewer fixed rate. The fixed rate covers the first 3,000 gallons. Town Manager Parker asked the 
Council to consider at most a $5 and at least a $3 sewer rate increase. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve an increase 
of the sewer fixed rate $4.00. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Discussion of Large Scale Changes to Expenditures: 
 
Manager Parker conveyed that since last night staff has had numerous meetings and discussions to 
consider individual department needs and how to finance and pay for requests made. Progress made on 
how to handle the capital requests and how to fund them. The plan would take unrestricted general fund 
balance, to a point to keep us close to our peers, and finance/internally finance or buy outright the other 
items requested.  
 
Manager Parker discussed the following Capital Projects and Requests: 
 Fire Truck; $1.43 million aerial platform truck; half from the general fund and half financed. 

$158,000 equipment purchase for truck being purchased now will come from the general 
fund. 

 Police Cars; three (3) cars 
 Public Works; one (1) tractor at $50,000 
 Fire Bay Sprinklers at $100,000 
 
The Enterprise Funds should balance the remainder with increases approved previously. 
 
Manager Parker discussed the following Personnel Requests: 
 Police Officers; four (4) positions 
 Fire Administration; one (1) position 
 Parks and Recreation; one (1) program position 
 Building Inspections; one (1) part-time position 
 
Parks and Recreation items not funded are; resurfacing basketball court for Hillcrest Park at $20,000; to 
start a plan for the multi-purpose facility at $30,000; and lights on the walking trail for Winterville 
Recreation Park at $25,000. 
 
Manager Parker stated that to fund all the requests would require a tax increase. 
 
Assistant Manager Williams gave the following presentation on the Electric Fund: 

26



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  

27



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  

28



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  

29



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  

30



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  

31



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  

32



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  

33



 

 
 

 
 
Discussion during and after the presentation-included topics on rate stabilization, purchase of power, 
demand and energy charges for electricity, and benefit to the customers. In addition, comparisons 
discussed between NTE and Duke and coal ash payments. No change in the rate will delay increase for 
8 years, or until 2016. Other nearby local governments are having similar discussions. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to keep the electric 
rates at the current level. Motion carried 3-2, Council Moore and Councilman Moye opposed. 
 
Assistant Town Manager then discussed employee benefits, health insurance, cost of living and merit 
increases proposed in the budget. 
 

34



Public Works Director Welborn discussed questions posed on ground water management, water 
capacity, pump depth, banking water, and well usage data. He also discussed the timeline for street 
paving and repairs. 
 
Assistant Manager Williams answered questions relating to the Nobel Canal project and status. 
 
The next meeting of the Council will be Monday, June 4, 2018 at 7:00 pm for the Budget Public Hearing. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Town Council will be Monday, June 11, 2018 at 7:00 pm. 
 
A motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to adjourn the budget 
work session meeting. Motion carried unanimously (5-0). 
 
 
 

Adopted this the 10th day of September, 2018. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

35



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year Budget 2017-2018 Public Hearing 
June 4, 2018 

Budget Public Hearing Meeting Minutes 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Mark Smith, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Ricky Hines, Councilman 
Tony Moore, Councilman 

Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Veronica Roberson Councilwoman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Mayor Jackson gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor Jackson ask for a motion to approve the Agenda. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Roberson to approve the 
agenda. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open and asked if anyone wanted to come forward and speak.  
Manager Parker commented on and presented the following Budget Message: 

36



 

37



 

38



 

39



 

40



 
Discussion during and after the presentation included Manager Parker stating that after the budget 
workshop meetings at the depot, she was charged to balance the budget and present a balanced budget. 
The updated information is contained in the budget provided. 
 
Councilman Moye asked about the increase for employees. Manager Parker stated that the budget 
includes a 1.5% cost of living increase for employees and a 1% pot of funds for merit increases. 
 
Councilman Moye asked if the new playgrounds are in the budget. Manager Parkers stated that they 
were in last year’s budget. Councilman Moye also asked about the resurfacing of basketball courts at 
Hillcrest Park, lights on the walking trail at the Winterville Recreation Park, and engineering costs to begin 
plans for a multi-purpose facility. Manager Parker stated that they are not in the budget. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Roberson to amend the budget 
to include $75,000 from the general fund for recreation improvements to resurface the basketball 
courts at Hillcrest Park, install lights on the walking trail at the Winterville Recreation Park, and 
engineering costs to begin plans for a multi-purpose facility. The motion carried 3-2, Council 
Hines and Councilman Moore opposed. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked if any other Council members had any items to discuss. 
 
Hearing none, he opened the public hearing. Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to come forward 
and speak. Hearing none, he closed the public hearing. 
 
A motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to adjourn into 
Closed Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: NCGS § 143-318.11. (a)(3): To consult with an attorney employed or retained by 
the public body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body, 
which privilege is hereby acknowledged. General policy matters may not be discussed in a closed session 
and nothing herein shall be construed to permit a public body to close a meeting that otherwise would be 
open merely because an attorney employed or retained by the public body is a participant. The public 
body may consider and give instructions to an attorney concerning the handling or settlement of a claim, 
judicial action, mediation, arbitration, or administrative procedure. (Suddenlink Lawsuit). 
 
A motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to adjourn Closed 
Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: A motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman 
Moore to return to open session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
ADJOURN: A motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moye to adjourn 
the Regular Meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
  

41



 
 
 

Adopted this the 10th day of September, 2018. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

42



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegates for NCLM Business Meeting. 

Action Requested: Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegates. 

Attachment: NCLM Business Meeting Delegate and Alternate Voting Delegate Form. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 8/27/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC  FD  TM  9/6/2018  Final  9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 

2018 ANNUAL CONFERENCE - Hickory, NC 

NCLM Business Meeting 

Friday, September 21st, 4:00 pm - 5:00 pm 

Elect Voting Delegate & Alternate Voting Delegate 

Budgetary Impact:  N/A. 

Recommendation:  Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegate. 

43



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Charge the tax collector with collection of the 2018-2019 tax levy. 

Action Requested: Charge the Tax Collector. 

Attachments: N/A. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 8/31/2017 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC        FD        TM  9/6/2018  Final  9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 
The State of North Carolina requires that each year the Tax Collector be charged with the collection of the tax 
levy for taxes.  This year the levy is $ $3,383,418.51. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: $3,383,418.51. 

Recommendation:  Charge the Tax Collector with collection of the 2018-2019 tax levy. 

 

44



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Tax Settlement 2017-2018. 

Action Requested: Accept the tax settlement for 2017-2018 fiscal year. 

Attachments: Certified Tax settlement. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 9/4/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC        FD        TM  9/6/2018  Final  9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 
The State of North Carolina required that each year the tax collector of a given municipality provide a settlement 
to the Governing Board.  The settlement statement gives the Town Council a look at the collection, discoveries, 
and adjustment for the previous year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact: N/A. 

Recommendation:  Accept the Tax Settlement. 

 

45



46



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Mellon Downs, Phases 2A and 2B:  Lots 19, 21, 25, 40, 41, 45, 47, 49, 50, 52, 57, 73, 74, 75, 83, and 
85.  

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing Date for October. 

Attachments: Annexation Map, Annexation Petitions and Metes and Bounds.   

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 8/27/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM         Final        

Supporting Documentation 
The property owners of Lots 19, 21, 25, 40, 41, 45, 47, 49, 50, 52, 57, 73, 74, 75, 83, and 85 in Mellon Downs, 
Phases 2A and 2B are applying for annexation into the Town limits. 

 

Mellon Downs, Phases 2A and 2B:  

Location: Oakwood Drive and Mockingbird Lane 

Size: 16 Lots. 

Zoned: R-12.5  

 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation.  

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation. 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation.  

 

Budgetary Impact:  TBD. 

Recommendation:  Schedule Public Hearing Date.  

 

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



 

Town of Winterville 
 Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section:  Consent Agenda 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Aces for Autism Property (parcel 14643) – Rezoning. 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for Rezoning for October 8, 2018.   

Attachments: Rezoning Map, Rezoning Application & Conditional Use District Application.  

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 8/31/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM  9/6/2018  Final  9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 
Aces for Autism Property Rezoning: 

Location: Parcel # 14643; Located on the south side of Worthington Road at its intersection with Old Tar Road  

Current Zoning: Agriculture Residential (AR) 

Size: 23.03 Acres.   

Proposed Zoning: Office and Institutional (O & I) 

 

 

 

*P&Z will hear rezoning request at the September 17, 2018 meeting. 

Budgetary Impact:  N/A 

Recommendation: Schedule Public Hearing for Rezoning.  

 

69



70



71



72



73



REZONING MAP 
 

FOR 
 

ACES FOR AUTISM 
 
 

 Beginning at a point located in the centerline intersection of SR 1700 – Old Tar Road 
and SR 1711 – Worthington Road thence running along the centerline of SR 1711 – Old Tar 
Road S 84-00-55 E, 841.52 feet to a point located in the centerline of SR 1711 – Old Tar 
Road; thence leaving the centerline of SR 1711 – Old Tar Road S 31-37-28 W, 33.28 feet 
to an existing rebar located on the southern right of way of SR 1711 – Old Tar Road the 
POINT OF BEGINNING said existing rebar having NC Grid Coordinates N 649771.87 and 
E 2481392.55; thence from said point of beginning and running along the southern right of 
way of SR 1711 – Old Tar Road the following courses and distance S 84-00-55 E, 14.37 
feet to a point; thence S 83-53-45 E, 468.26 feet to a point; thence S 84-39-47 E, 101.17 
feet to an existing rebar; thence S 87-20-33 E, 101.11 feet to a point; thence leaving the 
southern right of way of SR 1711 – Worthington Road S 14-13-37 W, 10.00 feet to an existing 
rebar; thence continuing S 14-13-37 W, 320.79 feet to an existing rebar; thence S 21-16-30 
W, 191.63 feet to an existing rebar; thence S 30-02-32 W, 868.47 to an existing iron pipe; 
thence N 77-53-41 W, 696.69 feet to an existing rebar; thence N 77-41-10 W, 122.23 feet to 
an existing iron pipe; thence N 31-37-28 E, 397.38 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence 
continuing N 31-37-28 E, 946.40 feet to the point of beginning containing 23.372 acres. 
 
 
 

74



75



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Robert Sutton, Electric Utilities Director 

 

Item Section:  Old Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Purchase of Altec Industries sixty (60) foot working height bucket truck. 

Action Requested: Approve Purchase of Bucket Truck via Sourcewell Purchasing Cooperative. 

Attachments: Altec Industries, Inc. Quote 437784. 

Prepared By: Robert Sutton, Electric Utility Director Date: 9/4/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC        FD        TM  9/6/2018  Final  tlp – 9/6/2018  

Supporting Documentation 
The 2018/2019 Electric Fund Budget allocated monies for the purchase of a bucket truck.  Staff received a quote 
of $239,520.00 for the requested bucket truck from Altec Industries, Inc.  The quote was secured using the 
purchasing cooperative, Sourcewell, rather than the state purchasing contract.  The vendor supplying the quote, 
Altec Industries, Inc., was awarded the bucket truck sales contract through Sourcewell.  Similar to the award of 
state purchasing contracts, Altec’s contract was only received after Sourcewell performed a thorough vetting 
process of several vendors.  This process is similar to the state contract process but is performed for national 
scale purchases versus state level.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact:  The FYE 19 Budget allocated $285,000.00 for the purchase of a bucket truck.  The quote of 
$239,520.00 is $45,480.00 below the projected and council approved amount.  This reduction is due in part to the 
ability of the purchasing cooperative to award national level contracts versus state level. 

Recommendation:  Approval to purchase an Altec bucket truck per Quote # 437784.    

 

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Robert Sutton, Electric Utilities Director 

 

Item Section:  Old Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Purchase of John Deere 410L Backhoe Loader. 

Action Requested: Approve Purchase of Backhoe Loader via Sourcewell Purchasing Cooperative. 

Attachments: James River Equipment Quote17908504. 

Prepared By: Robert Sutton, Electric Utility Director Date: 9/4/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC        FD        TM  9/6/2018  Final  9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 
The 2018/2019 Electric Fund Budget allocated monies for the purchase of a backhoe.  Staff received a quote of 
$114,497.12 for the requested backhoe from James River Equipment.  The quote was secured using the 
purchasing cooperative, Sourcewell, rather than the state purchasing contract.  The vendor supplying the quote, 
James River Equipment was awarded the backhoe sales contract through Sourcewell.  Similar to the award of 
state purchasing contracts, Altec’s contract was only received after Sourcewell performed a thorough vetting 
process of several vendors.  This process is similar to the state contract process but is performed for national scale 
purchases versus state level.  James River was also awarded the state contract for this equipment.  The state 
contract price for the backhoe was $121,250.00.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact:  The FYE 19 Budget allocated $130,000.00 for the purchase of a backhoe.  The quote of 
$114,497.12 is $15,502.88 below the projected and council approved amount.  This reduction is due in part to the 
ability of the purchasing cooperative to award national level contracts versus state level. 

Recommendation:  Approval to purchase John Deere 410L backhoe per Quote # 437784.    

 

95



96



97



98



99



100



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks & 
Recreation 

 

Item Section:  Old Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Hillcrest Park basketball court surfacing. 

Action Requested: Award project to North State Resurfacing. 

Attachments: Request for Bid document, bid tab, project contract. 

Prepared By: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks & Recreation Date: 9/5/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC        FD        TM  9/6/2018  Final 9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 
The Town received Proposals from two (2) vendors in response to Hillcrest Park Basketball Court Surfacing 
Request for Bid (RFB): North State Resurfacing and Court One. North State Resurfacing submit low bid in the 
amount of $21,343.50. North State Resurfacing completed the tennis court resurfacing at Winterville Recreation 
Park in 2017. Their staff was easy to work with and work was satisfactory. 

Amount budgeted in current fiscal year for basketball court surfacing is $20,000. Total amount of project, 
including base bid and all alternates, is $1,343.50 above budgeted amount. In order to create a quality and 
lasting finished project, Staff feels that it is in the best interest of the Town to complete project base bid and all 
alternates. Additional funding does not need to be appropriated for cost in excess of budgeted amount as this can 
be covered by funds in current fiscal year budget.  

Staff recommends awarding Hillcrest Park basketball court surfacing project, including base bid and alternates, to 
North State Resurfacing. 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact:  Funds included in current Fiscal Year budget. 

Recommendation:   Award project to North State Resurfacing. 

 

101



 
 

Parks and Recreation Department 

Request for Bid: Hillcrest Park Basketball Court Resurfacing 

 

DATE: August 6, 2018 

PROJECT MANAGER: Evan Johnston 

 

Project Description 

 

The Town of Winterville Parks and Recreation Department is accepting bids for bids for basketball court 

resurfacing at Hillcrest Park (2 courts). Please provide pricing based on specifications listed below. 

 

GENERAL 

 

1. Contractor shall provide all materials, labor, and equipment necessary to complete project as 

outlined in this Request for Bid (RFB).  

2. Contractor must ensure a safe and orderly job site at all times. 

3. Contractor shall be responsible for cleaning job site, disposal of all debris, removal of all 

containers, and surplus material. Dispose of all materials in accordance with local, state, and 

Federal regulations. 

4. Contractor shall be responsible for all associated permit fees, landfill and tipping fees, insurance, 

etc. 

5. Follow manufacturer recommendations and specifications for all products used during project. 

6. Contractor must store materials in accordance with manufacturer specifications and MSDS. 

7. The Town will not be responsible for managing or receiving any deliveries and will not be 

responsible for the storage or security of any equipment, supplies, or materials needed by the 

Contractor for completion of the project. 

8. The Contractor must assume that any purchase, responsibility, insurance, and action or activity 

which is necessary for the satisfactory operation of the services requested in this RFB, but which 

is not specifically designated as a Town of Winterville responsibility, is a responsibility of the 

Contractor’s operation, and the Contractor must include these in the response to this RFB. 

9. Where the Contractor fails to seek clarification, the Town’s interpretation shall control. 

10. The Contractor shall not make any claim for, or have right to withdraw its Bid because of any 

misunderstanding or lack of information. 

11. Project shall be completed within sixty (60) calendar days of notice to proceed. Liquidated 

damages in the amount of $100.00 per day shall be enforced if Contractor fails to complete all 

work within sixty (60) calendar days. 

12. Contractor shall provide twelve (12) month warranty on all materials and labor. 

102



13. Bid must be on letterhead and include contact information and all applicable fees/charges. 

14. The Town will not be responsible for or bound by an oral instruction made by an employee of the 

Town in regard to this RFB. 

15. Any statements made by an employee of the Town, which may materially change any portion of 

the RFB, shall not be relied upon unless they are issued as written addendum to the RFB or 

change order. 

16. Pre-bid meeting will be held on Wednesday, August 15, 2018, at 2:00 p.m. at Hillcrest Park, 2418 

Carmon Street, Winterville, NC 28590. 

17. Bidder or representative must attend pre-bid meeting or schedule separate meeting. 

18. If the Contractor finds that they cannot complete response without additional information, they 

may submit written questions or requests for clarification to Evan Johnston, Project Manager, at 

evan.johnston@wintervillenc.com. Written questions shall be submitted by 12:00 p.m. on 

Wednesday August 22, 2018. Questions received after deadline will be rejected as not timely. 

19. Addendum resulting from questions, pre-bid meeting, or any changes to specifications will be 

sent to Contractors by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, August 22, 2018. 

20. Bids are due to Evan Johnston on or before Thursday, August 30, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. This is an 

informal bid and bids will not be publicly opened. 

21. Contact Evan Johnston at (252) 215-2436 or evan.johnston@wintervillenc.com if you have any 

questions. 

22. Town of Winterville reserves the right to reject any and all bids. 

 

BASE BID 

 

1. Repair and resurfacing of two (2) all-weather basketball courts with overall dimensions as 

follows 

a. Dimensions are 105’ x 77’, total. 

2. Prepare courts to receive new surface; clean and scrape courts of all loose material, dirt, foreign 

matter and debris. Molded areas shall be cleaned with a bleach solution as necessary. 

3. Power wash surface as necessary to achieve proper application surface. 

4. Remove vegetation from cracks and the perimeter of the courts by pressure washing and 

treatment with a broad spectrum herbicide. This may be coordinated with Town of Winterville 

Parks and Recreation Department Staff only if warranty or warranties not affected. 

5. Patch all structural cracks, dings, voids, etc. in the asphalt surface using an acrylic patch binder, 

concrete, or combination. 

6. Patch all depressions/birdbaths holding more than 1/8” of water after draining for one (1) hour 

minimum 70 degree Fahrenheit in sunlight. Areas identified should be outlined with chalk, and 

the water swept out. After the area is surface-dry, apply coat of acrylic patch binder to the entire 

area within the chalk line. After applying the patch binder, strike off with a straight-edge the 

length of which is in excess of the dimensions of the “birdbath” to the same elevation as the 

surrounding surface. After the leveling operation, the patch should be allowed to cure properly. 

7. Do not install when rainfall is imminent or extremely high humidity prevents drying. 

8. Do not apply unless surface and air temperatures are 500F and rising. 

9. Do not apply if surface temperature is in excess of 1400F. 

103

mailto:evan.johnston@wintervillenc.com
mailto:evan.johnston@wintervillenc.com


10. Application of acrylic resurfacer applied at manufacturer’s rate (not diluted). The contractor is to 

provide color resurfacer following the manufacturer’s directions and application rates. 

11. Layout and tape lines in accordance with organization requirements and paint 2” wide lines with 

appropriate line paint to conform to standards. 

12. All colors must be approved prior to installation. 

 

ALTERNATES 

 

ALTERNATE 1: RIM & BACKBOARD REPLACEMENT 

1. Provide pricing for new rims (6) and backboards (6). These will replace existing rims and 

backboards. 

2. Contractor shall remove existing rims and backboards and install new rims and 

backboards on existing posts. 

 

ALTERNATE 2: CRACK REPAIR 

1. Provide pricing to provide and install polyester fabric, or comparable, to repair cracks on 

basketball courts. 

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

It is a policy of the Town of Winterville to require that all contractors performing work for the Town 

provide evidence of insurance prior to beginning work on any project. 

 

The contractor must at a minimum provide comprehensive general liability insurance. Depending on the 

type of work, other insurance may be required, including the following: builders risk, underground 

property damage, owners and contractor protective liability, automobile and workers compensation. 

  

 Contractors must provide: 

 

 Projects under $50,000: 

 Comprehensive general liability insurance - $500,000 

 Builders risk - $500,000 

 Underground property damage - $500,000 

 Owners and contractor protective liability - $500,000 

 Automobile and workers compensation - $500,000 

 

In certain cases, the Town may also ask to be named as an additional insured on the policy. All 

contractors must provide builders risk insurance until acceptance by the Town is established. The Town 

also requires that the contractor provide a certificate of insurance along with their bid. 

 

BID BOND 

 

All bidders shall provide a bid bond in the amount of 5%. Bond must be a certified check or a bid bond 

drawn by a company licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina. The Town will only accept 

104



bid bonds provided by bonding companies. Failure of a bidder to submit a bid bond at the time of the bid 

opening will render the bid invalid, and the bid may not be considered. Failure of the successful bidder to 

sign the contract will result in forfeiture of the bond. 

 

DELIVERY METHOD FOR BIDS 

 

This is an informal bid and bids will not be publicly opened. 

 

E-Mail: evan.johnston@wintervillenc.com (preferred) 

In Person: 2936 Church Street, Winterville, NC 28590 – Office hours M-F, 8:00am – 5:00pm 

Mail: Winterville Parks & Recreation Department, PO Box 1459, Winterville, NC 28590 

Fax: (252) 756-1368 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

105

mailto:evan.johnston@wintervillenc.com


HILLCREST PARK BASKETBALL COURT RESURFACING BID FORM 

 

Bid Summary 

Base Bid $ 

Alternate 1 $ 

Alternate 2 $ 

Shipping / Freight: $ 

Tax: $ 

Total Bid: $ 

 

 

Supplier:  

License #:  

Contact:  

Address:  

E-Mail:  

Phone:  

 

Installer (if different):  

License #  

Contact:  

Address:  

E-Mail:  

Phone:  

 

106



North State Court Advantage
Resurfacing One Sports

Item Price Price Price
Base Bid 13,128.50$                 17,296.17$                 

Alternate 1 4,845.00$                   4,128.25$                   
Alternate 2 200.00$                      3,417.21$                   

Voluntary Alternate 3 2,500.00$                   
Shipping 670.00$                      1,110.80$                   

Subtotal 21,343.50$                 25,952.43$                 
Sales Tax 427.46$                      604.57$                      
Total 21,770.96$                 26,557.00$                 

No Bids: Advantage Sports, Inc.

No Bid

Town of Winterville - Parks & Recreation
Hillcrest Park Basketball Court Surfacing Bid Tab - 2018

107



NORTH STATE RESURFACING, CO. 
Post Office Box 387 

Wendell, NC  27591 

Phone: (919) 365-7500 

www.northstateresurfacing.com  

NCGCL#: 73842     VACL #2705157542   

       PROPOSAL     
  Proposal number  23418   

  Page number      1 of 2    

 Date     8-26-18

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO:    WORK TO BE PERFORMED AT: 

Name:  Evan Johnson / Winterville Parks and Rec.  Name:         Hillcrest Park 

Address:       PO Box 1456,    

      Winterville, NC 

   Address:    Winterville, NC  

Phone: 252-215-2436  evan.johnson@wintervillenc.com         Job Site:   Basketball court 

 We hereby propose to furnish the materials and perform the labor necessary for the completion of:   The repair and resurfacing of two (2) 

  all-weather basketball courts with overall dimensions of 77’ x 105’. 

Surface Preparation: 
1. Pressure wash courts as necessary.

2. Clean and scrape courts of all loose material, dirt, foreign matter and debris.

2. Remove vegetation from any cracks and the inside perimeter of the court.

3. After vegetation has been removed, burn root growth with a propane burner then treat with a herbicide.

4. Patch any depressions holding more than 1/8" of water after being allowed to drain for one hour using an acrylic patch material. Note- Only

one attempt will be made to patch depressions. Any additional patching will be an extra charge of time and materials.

5. Patch any structural cracks, dings, etc. in the asphalt surface using concrete and/or acrylic patching material.

6. Install approximately 160 linear feet of Fortress 97423, Polyester Fabric over major structural cracks.

Acrylic Surfacing:

7. Apply two (2) coats of California 920-29, sand filled acrylic resurfacer, (or equivalent) to the entire court surface as a filler coat following the

manufacturer’s directions and application rates.

8. Apply one (1) coat of DecoBase I 920-05, sand filled acrylic latex compound, tinted with DecoColor MP 920-27, (or equivalent) to the entire court

surface as a texture coat following the manufacturer’s directions and application rates.

9. Apply one (1) coat of DecoColor MP Classic 920-27, acrylic color concentrate, (or equivalent) to the entire court surface as a finish coat following the

manufacturer’s directions and application rates.

Playing Lines: 
10. Layout, tape and hand paint 2" wide playing lines using Hi-Hide 920-22, textured acrylic white line paint (or equivalent). Playing lines shall consist of

full perimeter lines, half court lines with jump circles, four (4) keys and four (4) high school three point lines.

Completion:

11. Clean job site, dispose of all debris and leave courts ready for play.

Note- Owner shall provide potable water and electricity to within 200' of courts. Suitable access to the courts shall be provided along with an area for washing equipment. 

Color- As desired from the “Colorizer” page, found at www.northstateresurfacing.com  (Additional charges may apply to certain colors). 

Guarantee- One (1) year against defective materials and labor.  Standing water may only be minimized due to inadequate slope/drainage. 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified, and the above work to be performed in accordance with the drawings and specifications submitted for above 

work and completed in a substantial workmanlike manner for the sum of: 

Thirteen thousand three hundred seventy-five and 00/100--------------------------------------     DOLLARS ($ 13,375.00  ) 

with payments to be made as follows:   Due upon completion.  Unpaid balances are subject to finance charges of 1.5% per month. 

Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be  

executed only upon written order, and will become an extra charge over and above 

the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delays beyond   RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED BY: North State Resurfacing, Co.  
our control.  

PER:   Robert Witt /     

NOTE- This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 30 days.

     ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL 
  The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payments will be made as outlined above. 

DATE: ____________________________________  SIGNATURE: ___________________________________________ 

  COLOR SELECTIONS:  Inbounds___________________________   Perimeter___________________________________ 

DATE:_______________________________________ SIGNATURE:__________________________________________
108

http://www.northstateresurfacing.com/


 
 

NORTH STATE RESURFACING, CO. 
Post Office Box 387  

Wendell, NC  27591   

Phone: (919) 365-7500    

www.northstateresurfacing.com  

NCGCL#: 73842     VACL #2705157542    

 

          
                             PROPOSAL      
                  Proposal number     23418    

                  Page number           2 of 2 (Options)     

                               Date                         8-26-18 

 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO:              WORK TO BE PERFORMED AT: 

 

Name:        Evan Johnson / Winterville Parks and Rec.                             Name:         Hillcrest Park 

 

Address:       PO Box 1456,                    

                     Winterville, NC  

                           Address:      Winterville, NC   

Phone:          252-215-2436      evan.johnson@wintervillenc.com                                  Job Site:      Basketball court 

 
 We hereby propose to furnish the materials and perform the labor necessary for the completion of:   The repair and resurfacing of two (2) 

  all-weather basketball courts with overall dimensions of 77’ x 105’. 

 
 

Options                                                                                                             All Options are intended to be an addition. 
 

 

Alternate #1: Remove six (6) existing basketball backboards and goals. Provide and install six (6) Douglas 39”x54”, FST Fan Shaped Steel  

                      Backboards with targets and six (6) Dura Goal I, Double Rims with Nylon Nets………………………………………………… $ 5,695.96 

 

 

Alternate #2: Provide and install Fortress 97423, Polyester Fabric to all major structural cracks……………………………………………… $ 200.00     

 

 

Alternate #3:  Resurface as specified in the main proposal except apply one (1) additional coat of DecoBase I 920-05, sand filled acrylic  

                       latex compound, tinted with DecoColor MP 920-27, to the entire surface of the courts, following the manufacturer’s directions  

                       and application rates.   

                       This option will help prolong the life of the playing surfaces…………………………………………….……………………….  $  2,500.00  

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                       

 

                                                                               Other accessories are available. Please contact us for pricing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be                                          
executed only upon written order, and will become an extra charge over and above 

the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delays beyond                               RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED BY: North State Resurfacing, Co.                                            
our control.  

                                                                                                                                                                                                PER:   Robert Witt /       

                                                                                                                                                          NOTE- This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 30 days. 

                                                                                                  ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL 
               The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payments will be made as outlined above. 

 

        DATE: ____________________________________                          SIGNATURE: ___________________________________________                                                                                           

 
                       COLOR SELECTIONS:  Inbounds___________________________      Perimeter___________________________________ 

 

DATE:_______________________________________                        SIGNATURE:__________________________________________                        109



110



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

 

Item Section:  New Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Selection of Consultant for Land Use Plan. 

Action Requested: Select Recommended Consultant to develop Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

Attachments: Request for Proposal, Project Proposal Summary – Stewart. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 9/4/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM  9-10-2018  Final  9-10-2018 

Supporting Documentation 
The Town of Winterville solicited proposals from land use planning consultants with demonstrated 
qualifications and experience to work with Town officials, review existing land use regulations, gather public 
input, evaluate current infrastructure, service levels and capacity for growth, and develop/implement a final 
recommended Comprehensive Land Use Plan for the Town. 

The Planning Department advertised a Request for and received three proposals:  The Mid-East Commission, 
Holland Consulting, and Stewart submitted proposals.   

The Selection Committee (Town Manager – Terri Parker, Assistant Town Manager – Ben Williams, Planning 
Director – Bryan Jones, and Economic Development Planner – Stephen Penn) interviewed the three consulting 
firms.  Based on the RFP requirements (see attached) and the interview evaluations, the Selection Committee 
unanimously recommends Stewart as the consultant.  Attached is a summary of Stewart’s proposal showing 
project approach, proposed scope of work, and proposed schedule. 
  
Staff recommends awarding the contract to Stewart, contingent upon agreeing to a scope and fee within the 
budgeted amount.  

 

 

Budgetary Impact:  Funds included in current FY budget total $100,000 for the development of the plan. 

Recommendation:  Award the contract for the Development and Implementation of the Comprehensive Land 
Use Plan to Stewart upon agreeing to scope and fee within budgeted amount.  Direct staff to negotiate the 
contract scope and fee. 

 

111



 
 
Subject: Request for Proposals (RFP) 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Development and Implementation for the Town of Winterville, 
North Carolina. 
 
Introduction 
The Town of Winterville is soliciting proposals from land use planning consultants with 
demonstrated qualifications and experience to work with Town officials, review existing land use 
regulations, gather public input, evaluate current infrastructure, service levels and capacity for 
growth, and develop a final recommended Comprehensive Land Use Plan for the Town. The 
planning process is expected to take approximately 12 months and will include collection of data, 
analysis of demographic and historical information, an existing land use inventory, as well as an 
analysis of zoning and development activity within the Town. This information will be utilized to 
formulate a future land use map, as well as goals and objectives for the management of growth 
within the Town's planning jurisdiction. 
 
Community Background 
 
Community Profile: 
 
The Town of Winterville is a full service municipality located immediately south of Greenville in 
the coastal plain region. Per 2016 Census data, the current population of Winterville is 9,447.  
However, recent data suggests with the tremendous growth the Town is experiencing 
(approximately 200-250 new residents per year), the population exceeds 11,000.   
 
The Town of Winterville sponsors a variety of programs and activities which contribute to the 
relaxed, family-oriented lifestyle for which the community is becoming increasingly well known. 
 
Features of land use within the Town include: 

o Single-family detached dwellings are the predominant form of residential housing. 
o Commercial uses include a variety of smaller retail, dining, and entertainment uses 

along Firetower Road and Winterville Parkway.  The downtown area of the Town 
includes diverse retail and business uses. 

o The Forlines Road corridor has established industrial uses, including a major 
shipping and freight company; a world class fabrication, manufacturing, and 
industrial construction firm; concrete contractors; a vodka distillery; and numerous 
other industrial, commercial, retail and service industries. 

 
 
 

112



Services and Deliverables 
The Town is interested in proposals that will include, but not be limited to the following services 
and deliverables: 
 
• Services: 

o Monthly planning meetings with Town staff, and phone/email availability 
between meetings for occasional consultation. 

o Semi-monthly update and discussion meetings with the Town’s Planning 
Board. 

o Develop a public involvement strategy to include, but not limited to:   
o Formation of a steering committee, staff interviews, stakeholder meetings, 

public open houses, etc. 
o Attendance at one meeting of the Town Council to update progress, 

approximately halfway through the estimated time for completion. 
o Attendance at one Town Council meeting to present the final version of the 

Plan recommended for adoption. 
 
• Deliverables: 

o Written recommendations for Plan implementation by area/use, factoring in 
likely growth and existing services and infrastructure.  These written 
recommendations should be marked up after each charrette and considered 
separately for inclusion in the Plan. 

o Written recommendations for future infrastructure needs to serve likely 
areas of growth and development. 

o An editable GIS map of the Future Land Use Plan and the Current Land Use 
Plan 

o Final version of the Plan for consideration and adoption by the Town 
Council. 

 
For each service above, please specify whether the vendor will be available in person. Attendance 
by internet or telephone will be considered, but in-person attendance is preferred. In-person 
attendance is required for all Planning Board and Town Council meetings. Proposals should 
specify the total number of meetings estimated to be needed, separated by type of meeting (e.g., 
Planning Board, charrette, etc.). Additional meetings beyond the number specified in the winning 
proposal may be on a case-by-case basis with approval by the Town Manager. 
 
Timeline 
The tentative timetable for the proposal (“RFP”) is as follows: 
 
• RFPs are sent to selected vendors and advertised – July 13, 2018 
• Proposals due – August 17, 2018 
• Interviews of consultants – August 28-31, 2018 
• Final Selection – September 7, 2018 
 
Ethics 
Vendors are prohibited from directly communicating or in any way trying to influence members 
of Town Council or Town employees regarding this RFP. Vendors should refrain from offering or 
providing gifts to individual council members, administrators or employees. Any sponsorships or 
services beyond those contemplated herein should be addressed in the proposal and/or the 

113



presentation.  N.C. General Statue § 133-32 is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Requirements 
Please address the following questions as part of your proposal: 
 
A. Organization and Background  
 

1. Briefly  describe  your  organization,  the  year  it  was  founded,  location  of  its 
headquarters and other offices, its ownership structure, key individuals, and 
affiliation with other companies. 

2. Provide  the  name,  address,  phone  number,  and  email  for  individual(s)  directly 
responsible for responding to this RFP. 

3. Are  any  changes  in  ownership  or  management  of  your  organization  planned  
or anticipated during the next thirty-six (36) months?  Have there been any changes 
in ownership/management in the last eighteen (18) months? 

4. Are there any current or pending legal issues that could significantly impact your 
organization?  If so, provide the following information: 

a. The name of the adverse parties; 
b. If a lawsuit has been filed, the state, county and court where filed 

and the filing year; and 
c. A brief description of the substance of the pending legal issue or 

lawsuit 
5. Is your organization or a partnering firm under your supervision presently being, or 

has it, within the past ten (10) years, been sued in a court of law for malpractice, 
negligence, or breach of contract? If so, please provide the following information: 

a. The name of the adverse parties; 
b. The state, county and court where filed and the filing year; and 
c. A brief description of the lawsuit including the judgment or 

settlement. 
 
B. Staffing 
 

1. Provide an organizational chart that includes all individuals in your organization 
that will be directly involved with rendering services for the Town. 

2. Please provide a biographical sketch of the individual(s) that will be overseeing the 
Town’s account, including title and experience. 

3. What has been the professional staff turnover for your organization over the past 
three (3) years? 

4. Will you be able to provide adequate coverage should a vacancy occur in a position 
to which services to the Town are assigned? 

 
C. Clients/References 
 

1. Provide a comprehensive list of entities or individuals with whom you currently 
work in a consulting or advisory capacity.  (Please note: Your clients will not be 
contacted without your permission.) 

2. Attach a list of at least two (2) references of clients directly served by the individual 
or  team  who  would  be  assigned  to  the  Town  and  who  would  be  willing to  
be contacted. 

114



3. Provide  a  list  of  all  client  accounts  lost  in  the  last  three  (3)  years,  with  a  
brief explanation as to why the relationship was terminated.  (Please note:  Clients 
will not be contacted without your permission.) 

 
D. Services 
 

1. Describe any unique concepts or approaches your firm plans to implement as part 
of its services to the Town. 

2. In  addition  to  consulting  and  guidance  as  described  above, what  other  relevant 
services can your company offer the Town? 

Selection Process 
Proposals will be reviewed by a selection committee comprised of Town of Winterville staff 
members.  Based upon evaluation of the submittal package and consideration of the factors 
outlined above, the selection committee will choose no more than three finalists for a presentation 
and interview with the committee.  Following the interview process, a consulting firm will be 
selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation.  If an agreement cannot be 
reached with the selected firm, the selection committee will consider another firm. 

Miscellaneous Provisions 
The Town of Winterville and the selection committee reserve the right to reject any and all 
proposals, waive technicalities, and judge the suitability of the proposed services for its intended 
use, and further specifically reserve the right to make the award in the best interests of the Town 
and negotiate the total fee amount.  Upon delivery, all RFP submittals shall become the property 
of the Town of Winterville, and shall become a matter of public record. 

The Town of Winterville and the selection committee may conduct any reasonable inquiry to 
determine the responsibility of the proposer.  The submission of a proposal constitutes permission 
by the proposer for the selection committee to verify all information contained therein.  If the 
selection committee deems it necessary, additional information may be requested from any 
proposer.  Failure to comply with such request may disqualify a proposer from consideration.  
Please note that proposals may be considered public record. If there are any sections of your 
proposal that may be considered confidential under the law (i.e. trade secrets and proprietary 
information), please mark these sections of your proposal. 
 
Mailing Address and Contact Information 
Questions regarding this RFP shall be submitted in writing no later than 5:00pm on Friday, August 
3, 2018.  Responses to all questions will be communicated via email to all respondents.  Individuals 
responding to this solicitation should mail proposals and direct all inquiries regarding this project 
to: 

Town of Winterville  
Attn: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
2571 Railroad Street 
PO Box1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
Email:  bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com 

115



Town of Winterville | Comprehensive Land Use Plan Development and ImplementationSTEWART 18

SERV
ICES

D

PROJECT APPROACH

The Comprehensive Land Use Plan (LUP) approach will include 

a review of the existing Land Use Plan and the current Zoning 

Ordinance in order to assess how to better provide tools to achieve 

the community’s vision for its future. Winterville is experiencing 

significant population growth but at the same time has a strong 

desire to maintain its relaxed, family-oriented lifestyle.

A new LUP will reevaluate and confirm the Town’s existing goals 

and objectives through robust public engagement and identify and 

address current and future needs. The plan provides an opportunity 

to align and cross-reference goals and recommendations in recently 

prepared plans, including, but not limited to BikeWalk Winterville, 

the River District Overlay, and the Winterville Parking Analysis, and 

set a path for the next two decades. 

The Stewart team also understands that Winterville emphasizes the 

importance of placemaking and desires a healthy balance of land 

uses to provide housing, jobs and opportunities for recreation and 

entertainment. We acknowledge the Town’s desire to strengthen 

ownership in the LUP asking us to work collaboratively with Town 

officials and staff. The Stewart team will lead the effort and 

accomplish the tasks by executing a five-phase project scope. Our 

data-driven, design-oriented process has been carefully outlined to 

ensure the project objectives outlined in the Request for Proposal 

are met and that the result is an action-oriented Comprehensive 

Land Use Plan that Town decision makers will continue to use. The 

five phases are: 

 Phase 1: Project Initiation

 Phase 2: Analysis

 Phase 3: Design Charrette

 Phase 4: Plan Development

 Phase 5: Implementation & Adoption

Our team will work together with Winterville Planning and other 

Town Departments’ staff in all facets of the plan development 

process, including steering committee composition, data analysis 

and mapping, and the creation of policies and actionable 

implementation strategies for the Town and the Extraterritorial 

Jurisdiction (ETJ). Community engagement is ongoing, beginning 

with staff and continuing with the steering committee, 

stakeholders, Boards, Council, and the public. 

In general, we approach plans as a chance to have a community 

conversation. We think the best plans are informed by meaningful 

input from start to finish. The team will work closely with Town 

staff to refine the proposed public engagement strategy to be 

a road map for engaging citizens given the unique geographic, 

generational, and demographic characteristics of the study area. 

This strategy will set goals for the public outreach process, identify 

key milestones and outline the steps necessary to accomplish them. 

Our strategy proposes a mixture of the following public involvement 

116



Town of Winterville | Comprehensive Land Use Plan Development and ImplementationSTEWART 17

techniques:

 Leadership and Stakeholder Interviews – discuss the issues 

one-on-one with strategic groups

 Visioning Workshop – drop-in meetings where participants 

participate in interactive exercises to indicate preferences 

for concepts, projects, and goals for the community.

 Charrettes – multi-day on-site design-oriented workshops 

open to the public to gather input on recommendations and 

conceptual designs through an iterative process

 Surveys – prepare a survey customized for the community 

with 24/7 access to ensure a complete cross-section of the 

Town is polled

 Project website/social media – unique project website or 

content provided to staff for Town website, Facebook page, 

Instagram page, and/or twitter pages.

 Focus Group Meetings – targeted meetings with members 

of the community at key stages in the planning process 

to guide the development of the plan and associated 

recommendations

 Pop-Up meetings – go to where community members are 

already gathering (sporting events, festivals, Downtown 

Association meetings, school and senior events, farmers 

market, etc.). 

 Community Planning Toolkit – use of a custom planning 

kit that can be distributed to school, church, or civic 

organizations and administered in one hour to provide 

additional input. 

 Optional Service: Guest speakers that are experts in their 

area may be brought in to present on a topic relevant to 

the community. The talks would be educational, informative 

and interactive. 

An updated vision for the Town’s next 20 years will be crafted 

based on feedback received. Public involvement will be critical to 

identifying and prioritizing goals for the plan, determining the 

direction of the analysis, and emphasis of the recommendations. 

The public engagement strategy included in the scope is subject 

to revision based on staff and steering committee input, but 

tentatively includes one day of stakeholder interviews, five 

Steering Committee meetings, a week-long charrette, (community 

meetings), bi-monthly reports to the Planning Board and BOA, and 

one presentation each of the final draft to the Planning Board and 

Town Council. The phases of the scope of work are described in 

more detail below. 

PHASE 1: Project Initiation

Prior to beginning the planning process, our team will meet with 

Town staff to refine the work plan, public engagement process, 

schedule, communication methods, and other items related to 

project execution.

Existing Plan and Document Review/Data Gathering

The team will work with Town staff to identify and assemble 

relevant background documents for review. In addition, we will 

familiarize ourselves with the Town early in this phase to create 

an existing land-use map through field surveys, Town tax parcel 

files, aerial photos and Google’s street view. Spatial data will 

be collected from Town, state and federal agencies as well as 

SERV
ICES

D

IN
IT

IA
T
IO

N

Pre-Planning

Kick-Off

Interviews

Listen

Inventory

Assessment

Mapping

Land Use Suitability

Design

Workshop

Open Houses

Public Input

Future Land Use

Infrastructure

Concept Plans

Draft Plan

A
N

A
LY

S
IS

C
H

A
R

R
E
T
T
E

P
LA

N

Sept. - Nov. 

2018
Dec. 2018 - 

Feb. 2019

March

2019

April - July

2019

Proposed Schedule

Proposed Scope of Work

Implementation

Final Document

Adoption

Continuing Services

A
D

O
P
T
IO

N

Aug. - Sept. 

2019

117



 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  
 

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Ryan Willhite, Chief of Police 

 

Item Section:  New Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Contract with Pitt County Schools for the Town of Winterville to supply one (1) School Resource 
Officer at A.G. Cox (primarily) with secondary duties at W.H. Robinson and Creekside Elementary Schools.     

Action Requested:  Enter into the SRO contract with Pitt County Schools. 

Attachments: Copy of Proposed Contract. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 9/6/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC         FD        TM 9/06/2018   Final  9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 
Pitt County Schools has requested that the Town of Winterville enter into a contract to supply a School 
Resource Officer (RSO) in the county schools within our jurisdiction.  The county has proposed a one (1) year 
contract which will pay the SRO’s salary and benefits ($61,550) and the Town of Winterville would be 
responsible for the equipment, uniforms, vehicle and training.   

The SRO will primarily be assigned at A.G. Cox middle school, but will frequent W.H. Robinson Elementary as 
well as Creekside Elementary as needed or prudent.  The County will make 12 monthly installments to the 
Town to reimburse the salary and benefits cost.  As with other SRO’s throughout the county, we expect this 
contract to be renewed annually.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budgetary Impact:  The cost of a Police vehicle and equipment ($32,400) and the salary and benefits to be 
reimbursed monthly by Pitt County Schools.  The Department’s current budget will absorb personal equipment, 
uniforms and training costs. 

Recommendation:  Approval of Proposed Contract. 

 

118



NORTH CAROLINA 
PITT COUNTY 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER AGREEMENT 
2018 - 2019 

 
 THIS SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the 
AGREEMENT) is made this the 27th day of August, 2018, by and between THE PITT COUNTY 
BOARD OF EDUCATION (hereinafter referred to as the SCHOOL SYSTEM) and the TOWN OF 
WINTERVILLE, WINTERVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT (hereinafter referred to as the 
DEPARTMENT) (collectively hereinafter referred to as the PARTIES) as follows: 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS the SCHOOL SYSTEM agrees to purchase from the DEPARTMENT and the 
DEPARTMENT agrees to provide for the SCHOOL SYSTEM, and to manage, a School Resource 
Officer (“SRO”) Program in the SCHOOL SYSTEM consisting of one (1) full-time, twelve (12) month 
School Resource Officer (“SRO”), SROr supplies and equipment, and the SCHOOL SYSTEM agrees to 
reimburse the DEPARTMENT its expenses in providing the said SRO Program, as set forth herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS the SCHOOL SYSTEM and the DEPARTMENT desire to set forth in this 
AGREEMENT the specific terms and conditions of the services to be performed and provided by the said 
SRO in the SCHOOL SYSTEM: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1.0 Goals and Objectives.  It is understood and agreed that the SCHOOL SYSTEM and 

DEPARTMENT share the following goals and objectives with regard to the SRO Program. 
 
1.1 To provide a safe, inclusive, and positive learning environment for all students, 

educators, administrators, volunteers, and other members of the school community; and 
 

1.2 To foster an efficient and cohesive SRO program that will build positive relationships 
between law enforcement officers, school administrators, parents, and students. 
 

2.0 Method for Realizing Goals and Objectives.  To effectuate the goals set forth in Paragraph 1, 
the PARTIES have developed and agree to be bound by the terms set forth in an SRO Program 
Manual which sets forth standards governing SRO conduct and the relationship between the 
SROs and school administrators.  The SRO Manual is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is hereby 
incorporated into this AGREEMENT.   
 
2.1 No later than September 30, 2018, all principals and assistant principals at schools where 

SROs are assigned and SROs must read the SRO Manual and execute an 
Acknowledgement.  The Acknowledgement is attached hereto as Exhibit B and is hereby 
incorporated into this AGREEMENT.    
 

2.2 The PARTIES agree that their employees will adhere to the conditions set forth in the 
SRO Manual.   

 
2.3 Nothing in this AGREEMENT shall be construed to bar additional training to foster 

collaboration between school administrators and SROs or for any other purpose deemed 
necessary by the PARTIES. 

 
3.0 The DEPARTMENT’s Obligations. 

119



 
3.1 The DEPARTMENT agrees to employ one (1) SRO during the term of this 

AGREEMENT for primary placement at A.G. Cox Middle School with supporting duties 
at W.H. Robinson Elementary and Creekside Elementary Schools.  The SRO assigned by 
the DEPARTMENT to the SCHOOL SYSTEM may be assigned to and used among any 
and all public schools within the jurisdiction of the DEPARTMENT.  The assignments 
can be changed at the discretion of the SCHOOL SYSTEM and the DEPARTMENT.  
 
3.1.1 It is agreed that, in the event that the SRO serving under this AGREEMENT 

shall cease to serve as an SRO for SCHOOL SYSTEM, the DEPARTMENT 
shall provide a new officer(s) for the remaining term of the AGREEMENT at no 
change in monthly reimbursement due under the AGREEMENT for the 
remainder of the term.  However, no new or additional certified law enforcement 
officers will be provided by the DEPARTMENT without written authorization 
from the SCHOOL SYSTEM. 
 

3.1.2 In the event the SRO is absent from work and the absence was not scheduled in 
advance (e.g. sickness, death of a family member, medical emergency, etc.), the 
DEPARTMENT, to the extent reasonably practicable, agrees to assign another 
officer to substitute for the SRO.  In no event, shall the SCHOOL SYSTEM be 
without a replacement certified law enforcement officer while school is in 
session.   

 
3.1.3 In the event that an SRO is absent from work and the absence was scheduled 

(e.g. vacation, continuing education, etc.), the DEPARTMENT shall provide a 
replacement certified law enforcement officer during the period of the SRO’s 
absence. 

 
3.1.4 The DEPARTMENT shall not utilize an SRO during the designated workday for 

duties other than those set forth in this AGREEMENT except in rare and serious 
emergencies.  In the event of such an emergency, the SCHOOL SYSTEM may 
reduce the compensation payable to the DEPARTMENT under this 
AGREEMENT on a prorated basis and such reduction shall be credited or repaid 
the SCHOOL SYSTEM. 

 
3.2 The DEPARTMENT agrees to provide and administer the SRO’s salary and employment 

benefits in accordance with the applicable salary schedules and employment practices of 
the DEPARTMENT, including but not necessarily limited to: sick leave, annual leave, 
retirement compensation, disability salary insurance, dental insurance, and medical 
/hospitalization insurance.  The SRO shall be subject to all other personnel policies and 
practices of the DEPARTMENT, except as such policies or practices may have to be 
modified to comply with the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT. 

 
3.3 The DEPARTMENT shall ensure that all SROs that it employs meet all of the following 

basic qualifications: 
 

3.3.1 Unless waived by the DEPARTMENT and SCHOOL SYSTEM, be 
commissioned officers with three (3) years of law enforcement experience; 
 

3.3.2 Completion of a forty (40) hour SRO training course through the North Carolina 
Justice Academy; 

120



 
3.3.3 Completion of Crisis Intervention Training (CIT) certification through an 

accredited college, or other CIT provider approved by the DEPARTMENT; 
 

3.3.3.1 If the SRO does not possess CIT certification, the DEPARTMENT will 
ensure that the officer participates in the next available course offering to 
obtain CIT certification. 

 
3.3.4 Possess knowledge of the applicable federal and state laws, town and county 

ordinances, and Board of Education Policies and regulations; 
 

3.3.5 Capable of conducting in-depth criminal investigations; 
 

3.3.6 Possess an even temperament 
 

3.3.7 Capable of setting a good example for students;  
 

3.3.8 Receive annual training in school based violence;  
 

3.3.9 Positive experience working with youth and/or in a school setting and should be 
willing and able to serve as mentors for students;  

 
3.3.10 Have no substantiated evidence of harassment, discrimination, disproportionate 

minority contact, improper use of force, or other serious performance issues in 
their work history that would make the officer inappropriate for performing 
duties as an SRO; and 
 

3.3.11 Possess communication skills that would enable the officer to function 
effectively within the school environment. 

 
3.4 The DEPARTMENT acknowledges that the requirements of Section 115C-332.1 apply to 

this AGREEMENT.  The DEPARTMENT shall conduct an annual check of all sworn 
law enforcement officers assigned as SROs on the North Carolina Sex Offender and 
Public Protection Registration Program, the North Carolina Sexually Violent Predator 
Registration Program, and the National Sex Offender Registry.  The DEPARTMENT 
certifies that no individual may provide services to the SCHOOL SYSTEM under this 
AGREEMENT if he/she appears on any of the sex offender registries. 
 

3.5 The DEPARTMENT agrees to provide each SRO with all equipment which is not 
school-specific, including the following equipment: 

 
3.5.1 The standard issue firearm and rounds of ammunition for each SRO; 

 
3.5.2 Office supplies and forms required in the performance of the SRO’s duties; and 

 
3.5.3 Appropriate DEPARTMENT vehicles to perform the duties and assignments 

under this AGREEMENT. 
 
3.6 The DEPARTMENT shall ensure that its SROs maintain minimum in-service training 

and certification requirements as would normally apply to all other certified officers in 
the DEPARTMENT in addition to any training and certifications required for SROs.  To 

121



the extent reasonably practical, all training shall be conducted during the summer months 
when school is not in session.   
 

3.7 The DEPARTMENT further agrees that it shall designate a regularly employed law 
enforcement officer to supervise the assigned SRO and to coordinate the functions of the 
SRO Program with the SCHOOL SYSTEM’s Security Department (“SRO Supervisor”).  
The duties of the SRO supervisor shall include ensuring SRO compliance with directives 
and policies of the DEPARTMENT and the SCHOOL SYSTEM, coordinating SRO 
scheduling and work hours (e.g. vacation requests, sick leave, training, etc.), 
communicating all emergencies or any other useful information to the SCHOOL 
SYSTEM’s Security Department, communicating any temporary SRO replacements with 
the name of the officer and contact information to the SCHOOL SYSTEM’s Security 
Department, addressing concerns and complaints regarding performance and conduct of 
SROs in collaboration with the SCHOOL SYSTEM and in accordance with 
DEPARTMENT protocols. 

 
3.8 The DEPARTMENT shall ensure that its SRO Supervisor and any other required 

representatives attend meetings with SCHOOL SYSTEM to discuss issues relevant to the 
SRO Program and its operations.  As specifically discussed in Paragraph 3.8.1, the 
DEPARTMENT shall also ensure that all of its SROs meet with SCHOOL SYSTEM 
personnel at least once annually to discuss issues relevant to the SRO Program and its 
operations.  SCHOOL SYSTEM shall ensure that the scheduling of meetings does not 
conflict with the DEPARTMENT’s needs, including SRO assignments. 

 
3.8.1 SCHOOL SYSTEM shall provide annual training to SROs no later than 

September 30 of each year.  This annual training shall include training on the 
SCHOOL SYSTEM’s behavioral support and discipline policies, the SCHOOL 
SYSTEM’s SRO policies and procedures, a discussion of the  SCHOOL 
SYSTEM’s commitment to using its policies to ensure a safe and orderly 
educational environment and the fair and equitable treatment of all students when 
addressing student behavior, making disciplinary referrals when necessary, and 
imposing disciplinary sanctions when necessary, the limited role of SROs within 
the District’s behavioral support and discipline system, and the documentation 
that must be developed and maintained by SROs. 

 
4.0 The SCHOOL SYSTEM’s Obligations. 

 
4.1 SCHOOL SYSTEM shall reimburse the DEPARTMENT for the SRO provided at a total 

annual cost of SIXTY-ONE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FORTY-SEVEN 
DOLLARS AND 34/100 ($61,547.34).  The SCHOOL SYSTEM shall reimburse the 
DEPARTMENT in twelve (12) monthly payments payable in advance or on the day 
before the first day of each month starting September 1, 2018 and continuing through 
June 1, 2019.  Overtime and additional duty assignments are not included in this 
reimbursement and may not be added to the monthly invoice or invoiced separately. 

 
4.1.1 If any SRO ceases to serve as an SRO and no replacement is appointed and 

assigned by the DEPARTMENT for the remainder of the term of this 
AGREEMENT, monthly payments due from the SCHOOL SYSTEM pursuant to 
paragraph 4.1 will be reduced accordingly. 
 

4.1.2 Except as provided in Paragraph 4.2.2, in the event an SRO is absent or unable to 

122



perform the duties under this AGREEMENT, the reasons for such absence or 
unavailability are not attributable to the SCHOOL SYSTEM (either the 
DEPARTMENT requires the SRO to be absent or the SRO is absent due to 
sickness, disability, otherwise not available), and the DEPARTMENT fails to 
provide the SCHOOL SYSTEM with a replacement certified law enforcement 
officer, then the SCHOOL SYSTEM  may reduce the compensation payable to 
the DEPARTMENT under this AGREEMENT on a prorated basis and such 
reduction shall be credited or repaid to the SCHOOL SYSTEM. 

4.1.3 In the event of an emergency when the SRO is ordered by the DEPARTMENT to 
leave his/ her school duty station during normal duty hours as described above 
and to perform other services for the DEPARTMENT, the time spent shall not be 
considered hours worked under this AGREEMENT.  In such an event, the 
monthly compensation paid by the SCHOOL SYSTEM to the DEPARTMENT 
shall be reduced by the number of hours of SRO services not provided to the 
SCHOOL SYSTEM or the hours shall be made up in a manner determined by 
mutual agreement of the PARTIES. 

4.2 The maximum number of hours that an SRO shall be on duty in a work cycle shall not 
exceed the maximum number of hours allowed by the DEPARTMENT’s work cycle. 
Specific SRO duty hours at a particular school shall be set by mutual agreement between 
the SCHOOL SYSTEM, at the direction of the principal of the school to which the SRO 
is assigned, and the DEPARTMENT, by the DEPARTMENT’s officer in charge of the 
SRO Program.  The duty hours shall begin when the SRO arrives at the destination 
assigned by the principal and shall end when the SRO leaves the destination assigned by 
the principal.  The actual duty hours for each officer shall be recorded on time sheets 
provided by the DEPARTMENT, and the principal or the principal’s designee of the 
school to which the SRO is assigned shall review and sign the time sheet of the SRO each 
work cycle.  The principal, or the principal’s designee of the school to which the SRO is 
assigned, shall approve in writing any overtime of any SRO, and such overtime costs 
shall be the responsibility of the DEPARTMENT upon receipt of proper documentation. 
The principal shall provide the DEPARTMENT with an executed copy of the approved 
overtime for any SRO and the amount of overtime approved.  Such overtime will be 
compensated as indicated below and pursuant to DEPARTMENT policy and overtime 
regulations contained in the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

4.2.1 The SCHOOL SYSTEM and DEPARTMENT agree any overtime hours worked 
during the SRO’s pay period shall be compensated at the rate of time and one 
half for the overtime hours worked unless the SRO is permitted to adjust the 
SRO’s work schedule during that same pay period to reduce or eliminate the 
extra work hours, or a combination of both overtime pay and time off as agreed 
by the SCHOOL SYSTEM, the SRO and the DEPARTMENT.   

4.2.2 Subject to the approval of the SCHOOL SYSTEM and DEPARTMENT, if an 
SRO elects to adjust the work schedule by taking time off to reduce or eliminate 
the extra work hours during a pay period, the DEPARTMENT will not be 
required to provide a law enforcement officer as a substitute, nor may the 
SCHOOL SYSTEM reduce the compensation paid to the DEPARTMENT for the 
time off taken by the SRO. 

123



4.2.3 It is understood and agreed that time spent by SROs attending court cases arising 
from and/or out of their employment as an SRO shall be considered as hours 
worked under this AGREEMENT. 

4.3 The SCHOOL SYSTEM agrees to provide each SRO with the following: 

4.3.1 Suitable accommodations at school (i.e. a lockable room with limited access, 
telephone, desk, chair, computer, and filing cabinet);   

4.3.2 A radio with all school frequencies; 

4.3.3 Keys to any assigned school; 

4.3.4 Reasonable opportunities to address students, teachers, school administrators, 
and parents about criminal justice, safety, and security issues; 

4.3.5 A dedicated parking space in an approved location for the SRO patrol car; and 

4.3.6 A Pitt County Schools’ cell phone. 

5.0 Employment, Assignment, and Control of School Resource Officers. 

5.1 The SRO under this AGREEMENT will be an employee of the DEPARTMENT and not 
the SCHOOL SYSTEM.  The SRO will be subject to the administration, supervision, and 
control of the DEPARTMENT, expect as such administration, supervision, and control is 
subject to the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT. 

5.2 The DEPARTMENT, in its sole discretion, shall have the power and authority to hire, 
discharge, and discipline the SRO.  However, the SCHOOL SYSTEM shall evaluate 
annually the SRO Program and the performance of the SRO on forms developed jointly 
by the PARTIES and attached hereto as EXHIBIT C.  Exhibit C is hereby incorporated 
into this AGREEMENT.  It is further understood that the SCHOOL SYSTEM’s 
evaluation of the SRO is advisory only and that the DEPARTMENT retains the final 
authority to evaluate.   

5.3 In addition to annual evaluations, principals and school system administrators have been 
instructed immediately advise the SCHOOL SYSTEM Security Department, in writing, if 
the SRO is not effectively performing his or her duties or responsibilities, and/or receives 
a complaint from a staff member, student, parent, or other member of the school 
community about actions of the SRO.  The Security Department will report written 
complaints to the SRO Supervisor, undertake an investigation into the allegations of the 
complaints, and shall advise the SRO Supervisor of any findings of the investigation.   

5.3.1 If concerns about an SRO persist following a written complaint or the Security 
Department receives additional written complaints about an SRO, the Security 
Department shall recommend to the Superintendent or designee that the SRO be 
removed from the program and shall state the reasons in writing.  After receiving 
the recommendation from the security department, the Superintendent or his/her 
designee, if s/he agrees, shall advise the SRO Supervisor of the request. 

124



5.3.2 Upon receipt of a request from the Superintendent or his/her designee and if upon 
review by the Agency, there is verifiable, documented evidence of ongoing 
performance issues that have persisted despite the SRO being provided notice 
and an opportunity to improve, the DEPARTMENT shall agree to remove the 
SRO from serving in PCSS. 

 
5.3.3 In addition, if the Security Department documents SRO misconduct that 

threatens the health or safety of students or staff, the Security Department will 
immediately notify the SRO Supervisor and provide copies of such 
documentation.  The DEPARTMENT shall promptly remove the SRO from 
serving the SCHOOL SYSTEM until the completion of the DEPARTMENT’s 
review of the misconduct, consistent with the DEPARTMENT’s policies and 
ordinances and this MOU. 

 
5.3.4 In the event of the resignation, dismissal, removal or reassignment of a SRO, the 

DEPARTMENT shall provide a replacement for the SRO.  During such interim 
period, the DEPARTMENT shall assign an alternate law enforcement officer 
temporarily to carry out the duties of the SRO until a replacement can be secured.  
The DEPARTMENT agrees to use all reasonable efforts to prioritize the 
assignment of replacement officers at high school campus sites. 
 

5.3.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this AGREEMENT shall prohibit the 
Superintendent from preventing the access of any individual, including any 
assigned SRO, to SCHOOL SYSTEM property if the Superintendent determines 
it is in the best interest of the health and safety of students.  Likewise, the 
DEPARTMENT reserves the right to suspend a SRO from duty with the 
SCHOOL SYSTEM. 

 
5.4 The SCHOOL SYSTEM reserves the right to request that the contract services of an 

individual SRO be terminated if the Principal-SRO relationship cannot, in the discretion 
of the SCHOOL SYSTEM, be successfully negotiated. 

 
5.5 In the event the SCHOOL SYSTEM requests or desires the SRO or other members of the 

DEPARTMENT to perform duties under this AGREEMENT, beyond the corporate limits 
of the TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, the SCHOOL SYSTEM must request the assistance 
of the DEPARTMENT in accordance with the applicable existing mutual aid agreements.  
In no event may an SRO or other member of the DEPARTMENT perform duties under 
this AGREEMENT or attend any function or activity to perform law enforcement duties 
beyond the corporate limits of the TOWN OF WINTERVILLE without prior 
authorization. 
 

6.0 Insurance and Indemnification. 
 
6.1 While working as an SRO with the SCHOOL SYSTEM, the SRO shall have the same 

jurisdiction, powers, rights, privileges and immunities (including those relating to the 
defense of civil actions and payment of judgments) as a Law Enforcement Officer 
normally possess. While on duty at a school location, the SRO shall respond to requests 
and suggestions by the principal, but shall remain subject to the lawful operational 
commands of his / her superior officers in the DEPARTMENT. 
 

125



6.2 The DEPARTMENT, as part of sovereignty and acting under the sovereign will has such 
general liability insurance coverage as is the custom and practice of the sovereign of 
which the DEPARTMENT is a part thereof and will be in such amounts as decided and is 
customary on the part of the sovereign of which the DEPARTMENT is a part to address 
acts or omissions that occur or claims that are made during the term of this 
AGREEMENT. 
 

6.3 The DEPARTMENT agrees to hold the SCHOOL SYSTEM, its agents and employees 
free, harmless, and indemnified from and against any and all claims, suits, or causes of 
action arising from or in any way out of the performance of the duties of the SRO or the 
SRO Program, except where the SRO is acting under the direction of a principal or a 
principal’s designee. 

 
6.4 The DEPARTMENT shall hold the SCHOOL SYSTEM free, harmless, and 

indemnified from and against any and all claims, suits or causes of action arising 
out of allegations of unfair or unlawful employment practices brought by the SRO, 
which are attributable solely to the DEPARTMENT. 

 
7.0 Term of the Agreement.  The term of this AGREEMENT is one (1) year commencing on July 1, 

2018 and ending on June 30, 2019.   
 

8.0 Entire Agreement.  This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire agreement between the PARTIES 
and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, relation to the 
subject matter of this AGREEMENT.   
 

9.0 Amendment and Modification.  This AGREEMENT may be modified or amended by mutual 
consent of the PARTIES as long as the amendment is executed in the same fashion as this 
AGREEMENT.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the PARTIES may develop additional policies 
and procedures by consent to implement this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to policies 
and procedures regarding reporting requirements and sharing information between the SCHOOL 
SYSTEM and the DEPARTMENT.  Further, each PARTY may develop internal policies and 
procedures to implement their respective obligations under this AGREEMENT. 
 

10.0 Consideration.  For and in consideration of the DEPARTMENT providing the SRO Program as 
described herein, the SCHOOL SYSTEM agrees to reimburse the DEPARTMENT for the cost of 
the SRO Program, as described in Paragraph 4.1 of this AGREEMENT. 
 

11.0 E-Verify Compliance.  The PARTIES shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of 
Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statues.  Further if either PARTY utilizes a 
subcontractor, the PARTY shall require the subcontractor to comply with the requirements of 
Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statues.  The PARTIES represent that they 
and their subcontractors are in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the 
North Carolina General Statutes.   
 

12.0 Governing Law; Venue.  This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
North Carolina.  The venue for initiation of any such action shall be Pitt County, North Carolina. 
 

13.0 No Third Party Benefits.  There are no third party beneficiaries to this AGREEMENT.  Nothing 
in this AGREEMENT shall create or give to third parties any claim or right of action against the 
SCHOOL SYSTEM, the DEPARTMENT, or their employees, agents, contractors, officers, 
officials, governing boards, or successors in interest. 

126



 
14.0 Counterparts.  This AGREEMENT may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together constitute one and the same 
instrument. 
 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed the day 
and year first written above. 
 
PITT COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
 
 
 

  

Matthew Johnson  Ryan Whillhite 
Executive Director of Operations  Chief of Police 
 
 
 
 

  

Ethan E. Lenker  Terri L. Parker 
Superintendent  Town Manager 
 

127



 
EXHIBIT A 

SRO PROGRAM MANUAL 
SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM MANUAL 

2018-2019 
 
I. Goals of the SRO Program, Purpose of this Manual, and Prohibition on Unlawful 

Discrimination  
 
The Pitt County Board of Education is grateful for strong relationships with the Ayden Police 
Department, Farmville Police Department, Greenville Police Department, Grifton Police Department, 
Pitt County Sheriff’s Office, and Winterville Police Department.  Through the Board’s partnerships 
with these agencies, Pitt County Schools is able to have an efficient and cohesive School Resource 
Officer (“SRO”) Program with the primary goals of (1) providing a safe, inclusive, and positive 
learning environment for all students, educators, administrators, volunteers, and other members of 
the school community and (2) building positive relationships between law enforcement officers, 
school administrators, parents, and students. 
 
The purpose of this manual is to ensure that key stakeholders (i.e. principals, assistant principals, 
central office staff, and SROs) have a clear understanding of the role and duties of SROs, the role 
and duties of school system administrators, how SROs and school system administrators should 
collaborate to achieve the goals of the SRO program, and limitations on the relationship between 
SROs and the school system. 
 
All key stakeholders should be aware that the SRO Program is to be operated without discrimination 
against any person on the basis of sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin, age or disability. 
Under no circumstances will any stakeholder, the Board, or representative of the law enforcement 
agencies supplying SROs engage in any conduct in violation of state or federal anti-discrimination 
law in their interactions with students, including but not limited to any retaliation for reporting, 
alleging, or filing complaints concerning any alleged discrimination. 
 
II. The Imposition of School Discipline 

 
A. Routine Disciplinary Matters 

 
1. Principals and assistant principals (“school administration”) shall be solely responsible for 

implementing the Student Code of Conduct and school discipline policies. The school 
administration, not the SRO, has primary responsibility for maintaining order in the school 
environment and for investigating and responding to school disciplinary matters. 

 
2. The SRO shall refer any reports or concerns relating to student discipline to the principal or 

designee and shall not independently investigate or administer consequences for violations 
of the Student Code of Conduct or any school disciplinary rules. 

 
3. The SRO should generally not have any further involvement in routine disciplinary matters, 

such as tardies, loitering, noncompliance, the use of inappropriate language, dress code 
violations, minor classroom disruptions, and disrespectful behaviors and other similar minor 
infractions of school rules. 

128



 
4. School officials shall only request SRO assistance when necessary to protect the physical 

safety of staff, students, or others in the school environment. 
 

5. The SRO will not be involved in questioning of students initiated and conducted by school 
personnel in disciplinary matters unless requested by the school personnel to maintain a 
safe and secure school environment. If the SRO’s presence is requested under these 
circumstances, the SRO shall confine his or her involvement to what is reasonably 
necessary to protect the safety and security of members of the school community and shall 
not lead the investigation or actively question students. 

 
B. Joint Law Enforcement and School Disciplinary Investigations 
 

1. In cases where school disciplinary investigations and law enforcement investigations into 
criminal activity overlap and relate to matters affecting health or safety (e.g., when both the 
school administration and SRO are investigating matters related to the presence of drugs or 
weapons on campus), it may be appropriate for school administrators and SROs to work in 
tandem. In such events, the criminal investigation takes precedence over school disciplinary 
issues. In such circumstances, the SRO shall be mindful of and clarify his or her role as a 
law enforcement officer conducting a law enforcement investigation when interviewing 
student witnesses, particularly students suspected of criminal wrongdoing. 

 
III. Investigation of Criminal Matters 

 
A. SRO Initiated Investigations into Criminal Activity at School 
 

1. SROs may initiate appropriate law enforcement actions to address criminal matters, 
including matters that threaten the safety and security of the school or its occupants, and/or 
intervene with staff or students (with or without a referral from school staff) when necessary 
to ensure the immediate safety of persons in the school environment in light of an actual or 
imminent threat to health or safety. 

 
2. However, any such intervention shall be reasonable in scope and duration in light of the 

nature of the circumstances presented and shall be reasonably calculated to protect the 
physical safety of members within the school community, while minimizing, to the extent 
possible, any unintended negative effects on students. 

 
3. Additionally, all law enforcement actions and interventions to protect the safety of others 

shall be consistent with all applicable laws, regulations, and policies. 
 

4. SROs shall evaluate criminal activity committed on or adjacent to school property to 
determine if further actions are required by law enforcement. 

 
5. Use of force may be implemented pursuant to the SRO’s law enforcement agency’s 

procedures and protocols as well as all applicable laws, if objectively reasonable based on 
the totality of the circumstances and shall not be excessive, arbitrary, or malicious. 

 
6. SROs shall also, whenever possible, advise the principal before requesting additional law 

enforcement assistance on campus and shall request such assistance only when necessary 

129



to protect the safety or security of those present on the school campus. 
 

7. Criminal investigations and arrests by SROs will be conducted in accordance with all 
applicable legal requirements, including all applicable laws, regulations, and policies 
governing the use of force, interrogations, searches, and arrests. 

 
B. Investigative (Searches, Questioning, etc.) and Arrest Procedures 

 
1. SROs shall promptly notify appropriate school authorities whenever a SRO asks a student 

questions of an investigative nature or takes any direct law enforcement action against a 
student; however, notification may be withheld until deemed appropriate by the SRO if such 
notification would endanger a student or any other person or compromise an ongoing 
criminal investigation. 

 
2. The appropriate school authorities shall promptly notify the parent(s) or guardian of any 

student suspected of criminal wrongdoing. 
 

3. In cases where the parent(s) or guardian cannot be reached and any questioning of a 
student is conducted without parental notification, the school principal or designee must be 
present during the questioning unless the SRO directs otherwise for safety or investigative 
reasons. 

 

4. Whenever a SRO asks student questions of an investigative nature or takes any direct 
action against any student suspected of criminal wrongdoing. SROs and school 
administrators shall collaborate and determine how such above notice should be given in 
each individual circumstance. 

 

5. If a SRO questions, searches, or arrests a student at school, all reasonable efforts will be 
made to remove the student from other students and bystanders or otherwise to not bring 
undue attention to the student. 

 

6. SROs shall be aware of and comply with all laws and standards regarding searches of 
persons and property while performing services pursuant to this MOU. 

 
7. In particular, SROs shall be aware of the differing standards governing searches by law 

enforcement officers for law enforcement purposes as compared with searches by school 
administrators in connection with student discipline. 

 
8. At no time shall any SRO request that any PCSS employee lead or conduct a search of a 

student for law enforcement purposes or have them act as an agent of law enforcement. 
The SRO shall not conduct or participate in searches of students or their belongings in 
school disciplinary investigations unless their assistance is requested by school personnel 
to maintain a safe and secure school environment. 

 
C. Non-School Investigations 

 
1. SROs shall refrain from questioning students at school regarding non-school related 

matters unless the    SRO has a warrant or unless questioning, searching or arresting a 
student on school property at that time is necessary, in the discretion of the SRO, for the 
success of a law enforcement investigation or to prevent injury or crime. 

 

130



IV. SROs as a Mentors and Members of the School Community 
 

1. The SRO shall conduct himself or herself as a role model at all times and in all facets of his/ 
her work and shall seek to establish a strong rapport with staff, faculty, students, and others 
associated with the school.  SROs shall also encourage students to develop positive 
attitudes towards the school, education, law enforcement officers, and positive living in 
general. 

 
2. SROs are strongly encouraged to attend meetings of parent and faculty groups to solicit 

their support and understanding of the SRO Program and to promote awareness of law 
enforcement functions during the SRO’s regular duty hours. 

 
3. SROs shall be familiar with community agencies that offer assistance to youths and their 

families, including but not limited to mental health clinics and drug treatment centers, and 
shall provide information on such agencies to students, parents, and/or school 
administrators when appropriate. In addition, the SRO shall provide information to the 
school principal, students, and parents regarding additional resources offered by community 
agencies or the agencies providing afterschool and summer programs and opportunities for 
youth. 

 
4. SROs may answer questions that students have about North Carolina criminal or juvenile 

laws but should not to give legal advice. 
 

5. SROs shall counsel students in special situations, such as students suspected of engaging 
in criminal misconduct, when requested by the principal or the principal's designee or by the 
parents of a student. 

 
6. SROs shall attend meetings of Students Against Destructive Decisions (SADD) groups in 

schools and SADD groups as requested.  SADD groups are student run programs that 
educate the school community about issues related to drug and alcohol abuse, sexual 
activity, depression, bullying and suicide within the student population.   

 
7. SROs shall whenever possible and in accordance with guidance from the school principal or 

designee, participate in or attend school functions during the SRO’s regular duty hours, in 
order to assure the peaceful operation of school-related programs.   

 
8. SROs shall wear the official law enforcement uniform or other apparel issued by the Agency 

at all times while serving on school property and shall make best efforts to maintain high 
visibility at all times when practical and safe to do so, especially in areas where incidents of 
crime or violence are most likely to occur. 

 
9. The SRO shall remain on the school grounds during normal school hours, except when 

necessary to attend to a law enforcement emergency, to attend any meetings or trainings 
described in this MOU, or on limited occasions to attend to official law enforcement 
business off-campus.  With the exception of emergency situations out of the SRO’s control, 
the SRO shall give the SRO supervisor, and principal or designee reasonable advance 
notice of any times when the SRO is not expected to be on campus during normal school 
hours. 

 

131



V. Communication Between School Administrators and SROs 
 
A. At the School Level 

 
1. Open communication between SROs and school principals is encouraged at all times to 

ensure a collaborative and productive relationship. 
 

2. SROs are expected to meet with the school principal and members of the administrative 
team designated by the principal on a regular basis, both formally and informally, to discuss 
school safety concerns, duties and responsibilities. 

 
3. School principals are expected to meet with SROs on a regular basis, both formally and 

informally, to discuss school safety concerns, duties and responsibilities.  
 

4. The Board authorizes principals to report any crimes that occur on campus to the assigned 
SRO in compliance with all applicable state laws and Board policies that require school 
officials to report criminal acts occurring on school grounds to law enforcement.   

 
a. Presently, criminal offenses that must be reported to the SRO include (1) assault 

resulting in serious personal injury, (2) assault involving the use of a weapon, (3) 
assault on school officials, employees, and volunteers, (4) making bomb threats or 
engaging in bomb hoaxes, (5) willfully burning a school building, (6) homicide, (7) 
kidnapping, (8) unlawful, underage sales, purchase, provision, possession, or 
consumption of alcoholic beverages, (9) possession of controlled substances in 
violation of law, (10) possession of a firearm, (11) possession of a weapon, (12) rape, 
(13) robbery with a dangerous weapon, (14) sexual assault (not involving rape or 
sexual offense), (15) sexual offense, and (16) taking indecent liberties with a minor. 

 
B. With General Administration and Principals 

 
1. During the months of September 2018 through May 2019, SROs shall provide to the Pitt 

County Schools Security Department a monthly report of the aggregated number of 
referrals.  A copy of these reports must be transmitted to the Security Department no later 
than the 5th of the following month (e.g. the report for September should be transmitted no 
later than October 5, 2018). 

 
2. During the months of September 2018 through May 2019, SROs shall provide to the Pitt 

County Schools Security Department with a report of all school-based or related actions 
taken by the SRO, all matters that were referred to the court system, the outcome of any 
matter referred to the court system (if the matter has been decided in the reporting period), 
and the involvement of Pitt County Schools or an individual school in the proceeding (e.g. if 
district employees or students were called as witnesses).  A copy of these reports must be 
transmitted to the Security Department no later than the 5th of the following month (e.g. the 
report for September should be transmitted no later than October 5, 2018). 

 
3. During the months of September 2018 through May 2019, SROs shall perform monthly 

security assessments for each of the SRO’s assigned schools.  Copies of the security 
assessment reports shall be forwarded to the Security Department and Principals no later 
than the last day of the month (e.g. the report for September is due no later than September 

132



30, 2018). 
 

VI. Transporting PCS Students  
 
A. SROs shall not transport students in their vehicles unless one of the following circumstances 

exists: 
 

1. A student is a victim of a crime, under arrest, or some other emergency exists OR 
 

2. A student has been suspended from school pursuant to school disciplinary actions, the 
student’s parents are unwilling to pick up the student, and the SRO believes that the 
student’s continued presence on campus is a threat to the safety and welfare of others such 
that transportation of the student off campus is necessary.   

 
a. In this scenario, school administrators shall provide a school employee of the same 

gender as the student to accompany the SRO during transport. 
 

b. Additionally, in this scenario, a student shall not be transported to any location unless it 
is determined that the parent, guardian or custodian of the student is at the destination 
in which the student is transported. 

 
B. SROs shall notify the school principal before removing a student from campus. 

 
C. SROs shall not transport students in their personal vehicles. If an SRO does not have an 

agency vehicle, then a patrol unit shall be dispatched to assist the SRO. 
 
VII. Sharing Education Records 

 
A. Pitt County Schools officials are required to comply with the Family Educational Rights and 

Privacy Act (“FERPA”).  Under FERPA, education records (i.e. records, files, documents, and 
other materials, including security footage, that are directly related to a student and 
maintained by Pitt County Schools or by parties acting for Pitt County Schools) may only be 
disclosed to SROs in certain circumstances.   
 

B. SROs shall not automatically have access to educational records or personally identifiable 
information about a student in those records simply because they are conducting a criminal 
investigation involving a student or for general non-specific purposes.  Circumstances where 
school officials may disclose relevant educational records and personally identifiable 
information contained in those records with SROs include, the following: 
 

1. The student’s parent or the guardian or the student (if 18 years of age or older) consents in 
writing to disclose education records to the SRO; 

 
a. NOTE: Consent must be obtained using Pitt County Schools’ FERPA Authorization 

Form which is included in this manual as Appendix I. 
 

2. The information sought (again for a specific purpose) is directory information (e.g. student 
home address, student phone number, etc.); 

 

133



a. NOTE: Students’ parents or guardians or students who are 18 years of age or older 
may opt out of sharing directory information.  School system officials are NOT 
permitted to share directory information if an opt out has occurred.  

 
b. ALSO NOTE: School officials may not confirm non-directory information to an SRO.  

For example, if an SRO provides a student’s name and social security number (or 
other non-directory information) to school officials and is seeking additional directory 
information, school officials may not use social security number or other non-directory 
information to search for the student’s records as opposed to a name because using 
non-directory information to search for a student is considered to be confirming the 
accuracy of non-directory information to the SRO. 

 
3. Pursuant to a subpoena or court order; 

 
a. NOTE: Prior to complying with the subpoena, FERPA requires school officials to make 

a reasonable effort to notify the parent, guardian, or student who is over 18 years of 
age of the subpoena or court order to give an opportunity to the parent, guardian, or 
eligible student to object or seek other protective action.  School officials should 
contact in-house counsel upon the receipt of any subpoena for educational records.  A 
template of a subpoena that SROs may utilize to obtain education records is included 
in this manual as Appendix II. 

 
b. ALSO NOTE: There are three situations where making a reasonable effort to notify 

parents, guardians, or students over 18 years of age is not required: (1) a court issuing 
a federal grand jury subpoena may direct school officials to keep the existence or 
contents of the subpoena confidential even as to the involved student / parents; (2) a 
subpoena issued for any other law enforcement purpose may similarly direct the 
school to keep the subpoena confidential; and (3) federal law enforcement authorities 
may obtain ex parte secret subpoenas of student records in terrorism investigations. 

 
4. A health or safety emergency exists; 

 
a. NOTE: School officials may disclose educational records under this exception to 

“appropriate persons” without consent in connection with an emergency when school 
officials perceive an “articulable and significant threat” to the health or safety of the 
student or others under the totality of the circumstances.   

 
i. The standard for when a health or safety emergency exists is flexible.  School 

officials should generally not release education records based on a not fully 
formed sense that a student “might” do something at some indeterminate point in 
the future, but they are also not required to delay a release until the moment a 
student is on-campus with a gun.  Ultimately, school officials need to be able to 
articulate a basis for reasonably believing that a student poses a significant risk of 
harm to self or others. 

 
ii. Examples of articulable threats might include (but are not limited to) students 

making statements about suicide or violence toward others, displaying unusually 
erratic or angry behaviors, or engaging in similar conduct that school officials 
would reasonably see as posing a risk of serious harm.  By contrast, merely 

134



knowing that a student has access to a large cache of weapons at home—without 
accompanying behavioral red flags—would likely not rise to the level of an 
articulable or significant threat. 

 
b. SROs and other law enforcement officials are considered appropriate persons who 

need information to protect the health or safety of the student or others. 
 

5. Records concern registered sex offenders and the information was provided to school 
officials pursuant to federal law (i.e. Jacob Wetterling Crimes Against Children and Sexually 
Violent Offender Registration Act). 

 
C. School officials and SROs should be aware that it is the position of Pitt County Schools that 

Section 7B-3100 of the North Carolina General Statutes does not create a FERPA exception 
that allows for the sharing of records related to the “juvenile justice system.”  However, 
FERPA does permit school officials to report child abuse and neglect to DSS. 
 

D. Information obtained through a school official’s personal knowledge or observation (e.g. a 
teacher overhears a student make a threatening remark / observes a change in a student’s 
behavior / reads a threat posted on the school’s social media page) is not an education 
record and can be disclosed to SROs even if an education record exists containing the 
information.   
 

1. NOTE: The general rule that personal knowledge and observations can be shared with law 
enforcement DOES NOT apply to school officials who have a role in making a determination 
that generates a protected educational record (e.g. a psychologist may not disclose to an 
SRO information learned about a student’s behavior that the psychologist used in a report 
or assessment to determine a student’s eligibility for special education; a principal may not 
advise an SRO that a student is suspended; etc.).   

 
VIII. Evaluation of SROs 

 
A. Each SRO is employed by the Ayden Police Department, Farmville Police Department, 

Greenville Police Department, Grifton Police Department, Pitt County Sheriff’s Office, or 
Winterville Police Department.  Although personnel decisions are ultimately made by an 
SRO’s employer, principals shall provide annual advisory evaluations of SROs utilizing a form 
developed by the Board and the three law enforcement agencies.  The Pitt County Schools 
Security Department shall collect evaluation forms from principals and solicit feedback from 
the superintendent and other administrators annually.  The Security Department shall then 
submit the evaluation forms and any other feedback to the applicable law enforcement 
agency. 
 

B. In addition to annual evaluations, principals and school system administrators should 
immediately advise the Pitt County Schools Security Department, in writing, if an SRO is not 
effectively performing his or her duties or responsibilities and/or a staff member, student, 
parent, or other member of the school community has complained about actions of the SRO.  
Depending on where the SRO is employed, the Security Department will report written 
complaints to the officer supervising SROs for the Ayden Police Department, Farmville Police 
Department, Greenville Police Department, Grifton Police Department, Pitt County Sheriff’s 
Office, or Winterville Police Department.  The Security Department will undertake an 

135



investigation into the allegations of the complaint, gather written witness statements from any 
individuals with information relevant to the complaint, and shall complete a written report of 
the investigator’s findings and conclusion as to whether the allegations of the complaint were 
substantiated or not.  The written report shall also be submitted to the supervising officer.   

 
 

136



APPENDIX I- 
AUTHORIZATION FOR RELEASE OF EDUCATION RECORDS 

 

I, ________________________________________ (name of parent/guardian/student if 18 or older), hereby 
give permission for officials of Pitt County Schools to disclose confidential education records of the Student, 
__________________________________________ (name of student), and/or any personally identifiable 
information contained in those education records to the following (name of recipient and address): 
 

 
 
 
 

The education records governed by this waiver shall include (check all that apply): 
 

 Transcripts, report cards, and other grade reports 
 

 

 Attendance information 
 

 

 Disciplinary records 
 

 

 Cumulative file 
 

 

 Special education file 
 

 

 Immunization records 
 

 

 Other health records 
 

 

 Other (please specify):  
 

These records may be disclosed (check one): 
 

 Upon the authorized person’s request; OR 
 

 One time only, upon execution of this consent. 
 
This information is provided for the following purpose: 
 

 To provide relevant information to the Student’s medical provider(s); 
 

 To assist in meeting the Student’s educational needs; OR 
 

 Other (please specify):  
 
I understand that I may revoke this authorization at any time by providing my signed written notice to the 
appropriate Pitt County Schools officials.  Absent such notice, this authorization shall expire on 
_________________________________ (date). 
 

I acknowledge that this form constitutes my written consent to release written consent to the release of 
confidential, personally identifiable information that is protected under the federal Family Educational and 
Privacy Rights Act (FERPA) and state law governing the confidentiality of student records and personally 
identifiable information contained in such records.  I certify that I am more than eighteen years old and that I 
have authority to execute this authorization. 
   

Signature of parent/guardian/student 18 or older  Date 

   

Name (please print)   

   

Address City State             Zip 

 

137



APPENDIX II-COURT ORDER TEMPLATE 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF PITT 

IN THE GENERAL COURT OF JUSTICE 
DISTRICT COURT DIVISION 

IN RE: __________________________ ORDER FOR RELEASE OF EDUCATIONAL 
RECORDS 

THIS CAUSE HAVING COME ON TO BE HEARD before the undersigned District Court Judge 
presiding, and it appears to the court: 

1. That there is an ongoing criminal investigation by _______ of the Ayden Police Department/
Farmville Police Department/ Greenville Police Department/ Grifton Police Department/ Pitt County
Sheriff’s Office/ Winterville Police Department regarding __________ that occurred on or about
________ which is a violation of Chapter ___, Article ___. of the North Carolina General
Statutes.

2. That the alleged offenses occurred at ________ School, a public school that is part of the Pitt
County Public School System.

3. Upon information and belief, there is video surveillance of the crime scene and there are
statements to school administrators made by four students associated with this investigation.

4. Upon information and belief, said video surveillance and student statements are considered
"education records" of one or more public school students under the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. 1232g, and its implementing regulations, and
contain information relevant and material to the investigation described above.

5. Under the relevant FERPA regulation, 34 C.F.R 99.3l(a)(9), an educational agency or
institution may disclose personally identifiable information from an education record of a
student without written parental consent if the disclosure is to comply with a judicial order or
lawfully issued subpoena. The same regulation also provides that the educational agency or
institution may make such disclosures only if the agency or institution makes a reasonable
effort to notify the parent or eligible student of the order or subpoena in advance of
compliance, so that the parent or eligible student may seek protective action.

6. That it is in the best interest of justice and the enforcement of the laws of the State of
North Carolina to have this information disclosed to law enforcement for use in the criminal
investigation described above, subject to the rights of the parent or eligible student whose
records would be disclosed to seek protective action from this Court prior to disclosure.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that any video surveillance and witness statements contained in 
student education records maintained by school officials at ________ School as described in this 
Order be released two ________ of the Ayden Police Department/ Farmville Police Department/ 
Greenville Police Department/ Grifton Police Department/ Pitt County Sheriff’s Office/ Winterville Police 
Department for use in the criminal investigation of this matter, after appropriate school officials have 
first provided reasonable notice to the parents or eligible students of their rights to seek protective 
action from this Court. 

This the_____ of ________, 2018. 

_____________________________ 

138



Presiding Judge

139



EXHIBIT B 

SRO PROGRAM MANUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
(To be Completed by ALL SROs, Principals, and Assistant Principals) 

I, ___________________________________ (print name), am a key stakeholder in the success of Pitt County 
Schools’ SRO Program. 

As a key stakeholder, I acknowledge that the success of the SRO Program requires collaboration between 
principals, assistant, principals and SROs and a clear understanding of the roles and duties of school 
administrators and SROs.   

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read the SRO Program Manual developed by the Pitt County 
Board of Education and local law enforcement agencies to develop an understanding of the roles and duties of 
school administrators and SROs.   

Principal/AP/ SRO Signature: 

Date: 

**THIS FORM SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO IN-HOUSE COUNSEL FOR THE PITT COUNTY BOARD OF 
EDUCATION, EMMA HODSON, ON OR BEFORE SEPTEMBER 30, 2018.  THE FORM MAY BE DROPPED OFF 
TO THE CENTRAL OFFICE FOR PITT COUNTY SCHOOLS (1717 W FIFTH STREET, GREENVILLE, NC 27834, 
3rd FLOOR) OR SENT VIA E-MAIL (crankin@pitt.k12.nc.us).  

140

mailto:crankin@pitt.k12.nc.us


EXHIBIT C 

SRO PERFORMANCE EVALUATION METRIC 2018-2019 ACADEMIC YEAR 
(TO BE COMPLETED BY SCHOOL SYSTEM ADMINISTRATORS) 

School Name: 

Completed By: 

Date Completed: 

SRO Name: 

Please respond to each question using the following scale: 
5-Strongly Agree
4-Agree
3-Neither Agree nor Disagree
2-Disagree
1-Strongly Disagree

Question Response 
Q1: SRO remains on campus during normal school hours, except when necessary to attend to a law 

enforcement emergency, trainings, meetings, or official law enforcement business off-campus. 
Q2: SRO makes best efforts to maintain high visibility at all times when practical and safe to do so, 

especially in areas where incidents of crime or violence are most likely to occur. 
Q3: SRO participates in or attend school functions during regular duty hours in order to assure the 

peaceful operation of school-related programs. 
Q4: SRO conducts himself/ herself as a role model at all times and in all facets of the job and seeks 

to establish a strong rapport with staff, faculty, students, and others associated with the school 
and encourages students to develop positive attitudes toward school, education, law 
enforcement officers, and positive living in general. 

Q5: SRO initiates appropriate law enforcement actions to address criminal matters, including 
matter that threaten the safety and security of the school or its occupants, and/or intervenes 
with staff or students (with or without a referral from school staff) when necessary to ensure 
the immediate safety of persons in the school environment in light of an actual or imminent 
threat to health or safety. 

Q6: SRO refers any reports or concerns relating to student discipline to the principal or designees 
and does not independently investigate or administer consequences for violations of the 
Student Code of Conduct or any school disciplinary rules. 

Q7: SRO meets with principal and members of the administrative team designated by the principal 
on a regular basis, both formally and informally, to discuss school safety concerns, duties, and 
responsibilities. 

Q8: SRO reports any safety concerns to the school principal and/or designee and confers with the 
school principal to develop plans and strategies to prevent and/or minimize dangerous 
situations on or near the campus involving students at school-related activities. 

*If an answer above was ranked at a score of 3 or less, please provide an explanation and any other information
that you wish to share regarding your SRO or the SRO Program.

141



Comments: 

142



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item Section:  New Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: Budget Amendment 2018-2019-2. 

Action Requested: Approve the budget amendment. 

Attachments: Budget Amendment 18-19-2. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 9/4/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC   FD  TM 9/6/2018  Final  9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 
This is the second budget amendment for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses the need to purchase rifles, sights, and targets.  These items are needed as a 
result of the new positions funded in the budget this year.  Funding for these purchases will be made with asset 
forfeiture funds.  These funds are collected by the courts and distributed to participating governmental entities.  
The state general statue identifies what the funds can be spent on by the respective law enforcement units. 

This amendment also includes funding from Pitt County Schools for a school resource officer.  The salary and 
benefits will be covered by Pitt County Schools in the amount of $61,547.34.  The Town will cover the cost of 
equipping the officer and providing for a vehicle.  The amount of the initial cost to the town will be $32,400 for 
the new vehicle.  The other cost will be absorbed in operation budget. 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $100,223. 

Recommendation:  Approve the Budget Amendment. 

143



BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 18-19-2
.

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment 
be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019:

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Increase Decrease
Fund Balance Contribution 10 3831 General 38,673$  
School Resource Officer Grant 10 General 61,550$  

Total 100,223$              -$  

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Department Fund Increase Decrease
Asset Forfieture Allocation 1043431000 4263 Police General 6,273$  
Salaries 1043431000 4120 Police General 61,550$  
Capital Outlay 1043431000 7150 Police General 32,400$  

Total 100,223$              -$  

Adopted the 10th day of September 2018.

Mayor

Town Clerk 

144



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract  

Meeting Date: September 10, 2018 
Presenter: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks & 
Recreation 

Item Section:  New Business 

Item to be Considered 
Subject: 2018 Winterville Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony Date. 

Action Requested: Staff recommends moving date of 2018 Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony and Reception 
from December 6th to November 29th. 

Attachments: None. 

Prepared By: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks & Recreation Date: 9/5/2018 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 
 TC  FD  TM  9/6/2018  Final  9/6/2018 

Supporting Documentation 
The traditional date of the Winterville Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony and the Mayor and Council Reception is 
the first Thursday of December (December 6, 2018). Staff recommends moving 2018 Christmas Tree Lighting 
Ceremony and Mayor and Council Reception to November 29th. Staff recommends changes based off following 
rationale: 

1. Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony and Reception is traditionally in week preceding Christmas Parade.
For 2018, 1st Thursday in December (December 6th) falls same week as Christmas Parade date, 1st

Saturday in December (December 8th). Moving Tree Lighting Ceremony to November 29th will allow Tree
Lighting Ceremony to take place in week preceding Christmas Parade.

2. Town Christmas Tree and other decorations are typically placed the week of Thanksgiving or the following
week. By moving the Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony up one week to November 29th the Town could
light the Christmas Tree and accompanying decorations shortly after these items are placed.

Budgetary Impact:  N/A. 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends moving date of 2018 Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony and Reception 
from December 6th to November 29th. 

145


	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Council Meeting Minutes.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation

	ADPDFD8.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegates for NCLM Business Meeting.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF712.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Charge the tax collector with collection of the 2018-2019 tax levy.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP996A.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Tax Settlement 2017-2018.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPAFD9.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Budget Amendment 2018-2019-2.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP407E.tmp
	Amendment

	ADPA2BB.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Mellon Downs, Phases 2A and 2B:  Lots 19, 21, 25, 40, 41, 45, 47, 49, 50, 52, 57, 73, 74, 75, 83, and 85. 
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM       
	 Final       
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP9403.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Aces for Autism Property (parcel 14643) – Rezoning.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPF45F.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Purchase of Altec Industries sixty (60) foot working height bucket truck.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final  tlp – 9/6/2018 
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD1E3.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Hillcrest Park basketball court surfacing.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final 9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation


	North State Resurfacing HP Court Resurfacing Contract.pdf
	Hillcrest Park Basketball Resurfacing.pdf
	Hillcrest Park Basketball Resurfacing Options.pdf
	Winterville Bid Form.pdf
	Deco Surfacing Materials and Fortress Polyester.pdf
	Deco Surfacing Materials.pdf
	DecoGreenWise .pdf
	Acrylic-Resurfacer_spec.pdf
	Deco-Base1_spec.pdf
	DecoColor-MP-Classic_spec.pdf
	Hi-Hide-Line-Paint_spec.pdf

	Fortress Polyester Data.pdf

	Douglas Basketball Backboards and Goals.pdf

	ADP11C2.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Selection of Consultant for Land Use Plan.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM  9-10-2018
	 Final  9-10-2018
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP2C08.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC       
	 FD      

	 TM 9/06/2018 
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP9576.tmp
	SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER AGREEMENT
	NORTH CAROLINA
	SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM MANUAL
	2018-2019

	ADP7693.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Budget Amendment 2018-2019-2.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC        
	 FD      

	 TM 9/6/2018 
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation


	ADPD4AB.tmp
	Amendment

	ADP165E.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: 2018 Winterville Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony Date.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation


	ADP79F8.tmp
	Item to be Considered
	Subject: Purchase of John Deere 410L Backhoe Loader.
	ABSTRACT ROUTING:
	 TC      
	 FD      

	 TM  9/6/2018
	 Final  9/6/2018
	Supporting Documentation





